
TOWN OF ERIN
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA
 

December 1, 2015
1:00 PM

Municipal Council Chamber
Pages

1. Call to Order

1.1 Service Award Presentation

2. Approval of Agenda

3. Public Question Period

The 15 minute Public Question Period is an opportunity for members of the
public to ask questions through the Chair.  Questions and comments
regarding an ongoing planning application are not permitted during this
item.  Public comments and questions are submitted through the planning
process as presribed under the Planning Act.

• Once invited to address Council, the person(s) will be asked to stand at
the podium or sit at the table to pose their question, and to state their
name for the record.

• When addressing Council, you may make two statements sufficient to
establish the context of the question, and then pose the question.

• Each individual may ask one question, and will be given a time limit of
5 minutes, so that there is opportunity for 3 members of the public to
address Council.

4. Declaration Pecuniary Interest

5. Community Announcements

5.1 Headwaters Tourism Awards 1

6. Adoption of Minutes

6.1 November 17, 2015 Regular Meeting 2 - 9

7. Business Arising from the Minutes

8. Accounts

9. Delegations/Petitions/Presentations

9.1 Linda Dickson, Emergency Manager - Emergency Management
Program Report for 2015

10 - 14



9.2 Deborah Martin-Downs - Credit Valley Conservation 2016 Proposed
Budget

15 - 36

9.3 Kari Simpson and Stephanie Cardway, EWCS - Updating Council on
the programs and services offered to residents

37

10. Reports

10.1 Water

10.1.1 Interim Water Superintendent - Water Department Project
Updates

38 - 41

10.1.2 Interim Water Superintendent - Frozen Water Service
Policy

42 - 50

10.2 Administration

10.2.1 Clerk - Proposed Corporate Services Fee By-Law 51 - 56

10.2.2 CAO - Council's First Year Report Card

10.3 Finance

10.3.1 Director of Finance - Temporary Borrowing By-law 2015 57 - 58

10.3.2 Financial Analyst - Five Year Capital Plan 2016 – 2020,
Draft: Dec 1, 2015

59 - 65

10.3.3 Director of Finance - Approval of Accounts - Revised
Process

66 - 68

10.4 Committees

10.4.1 Town of Erin Heritage Committee - September 21 and
October 19 meeting minutes, November 16 resolution

69 - 73

10.4.2 Let's Get Hillsburgh Growing - October 15 Meeting
Minutes

74 - 77

11. Correspondence

11.1 Activity List 78 - 80

11.2 Conservation Authorities Agendas and Minutes

Grand River Conservation Authority:
http://www.grandriver.ca/index/document.cfm?Sec=13& Sub1=71

Credit Valley Conservation Authority:
http://www.creditvalleyca.ca/about-cvc/board-of-directors/board-
meetings/

11.3 Ontario Tire Stewardship - Community Renewal Fund - Project
Approval

81

11.4 Ministry of Finance and Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing -
Ontario Municipal Partnership Fund Program Allocations for 2016

82 - 84

http://www.grandriver.ca/index/document.cfm?Sec=13&Sub1=71
http://www.creditvalleyca.ca/about-cvc/board-of-directors/board-meetings/
http://www.creditvalleyca.ca/about-cvc/board-of-directors/board-meetings/


11.5 Ministry of Citizenship, Immigration and International Trade - The
Ontario Medal for Young Volunteers

85

11.6 Ted Arnott, MPP Wellington-Halton Hills - Letter of support of
Council comments with regards to the Conservation Authorities Act
Review

86 - 89

11.7 Councillor Duncan - Letter regarding a need for signage and speed
limit review

90

11.8 County of Wellington - Notice regarding a public meeting to
consider an amendment to the County of Wellington Official Plan

91 - 105

11.9 Erin Village BIA - Meeting minutes from July 23, Sept 3, and Oct 1
2015

106 - 116

11.10 Municipality of Neebing - Consultation on the Police Services Act 117 - 118

11.11 Halton Region - Source Protection Plan Implementation
Requirements

119 - 130

11.12 The Corporation of the United Townships of Head, Clara and Maria
- Dissolution of Local Emergency Response Board and Request for
Services

131 - 132

12. New Business

12.1 Set Budget Meeting Dates

13. Closed Session

Matters under the following exemptions in the Municipal Act S. 239 (2) :

• personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or
local board employees (IT, CBO, Recreation Department);

• labour relations or employee negotiations (Director of Infrastructure
and Operations);

• litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative
tribunals, affecting the municipality or local board; (Agreement,
Keeping of Animals By-law)

• advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including
communications necessary for that purpose (EA)

14. Return from Closed Session

14.1 Motion to Reconvene

14.2 Report Out

15. By-Laws 133 - 199

Borrowing
Silvercreek Development Agreement (housekeeping)
Assume Services (Crewson's Corner)
Assume Services (Madison Lakes)



Confirming

16. Notice of Motion

17. Adjournment



1



 

Minutes of the Regular Town of Erin Council Meeting 

 

November 17, 2015 

6:30 pm 

Municipal Council Chamber 

 

PRESENT Allan Alls 

John Brennan 

Matt Sammut 

Rob Smith 

Jeff Duncan 

Mayor 

Councillor 

Councillor 

Councillor 

Councillor 

 

STAFF PRESENT: Kathryn Ironmonger 

Dina Lundy 

Sharon Marshall 

Larry Wheeler 

Harold Knox 

 

Bob Cheetham 

 

Robyn Mulder 

CAO/Town Manager 

Clerk 

Director of Finance 

Financial Analyst 

By-Law Officer/Building 

Inspector 

Economic Development 

Coordinator 

Economic Development Officer 

 

 

1. Call to Order 

 

Mayor Alls called the meeting to order. 

 

2. Approval of Agenda 

 

Resolution #   15-436 

Moved By  Councillor Brennan 

Seconded By  Councillor Smith 

Be it resolved that the agenda be approved as circulated. 

Carried 

 

3. Public Question Period 

 

Elizabeth Crighton: 

 

2



November 17, 2015 Regular Council Meeting 

 

 2 

Would Council consider amending the sign by-law to address issues with 

directional and temporary signs being left out? (Perhaps so that they are 

removed after 48 hours and to introduce a yearly fee rather than individual) 

 

Council directed that staff bring a report and proposed by-law back.  It will likely 

happen in the new year. 

 

Stewart Sebben: 

 

Mr. Sebben had several comments/questions surrounding the CBM Pit 

Expansion. 

 

Council did not comment as this is an ongoing application, but encouraged Mr. 

Sebben to forward all of his questions and concerns to ensure they are all taken 

into account during the planning process. 

 

4. Declaration Pecuniary Interest 

 

None. 

 

5. Community Announcements 

 

Nov 21 - Annual Firefighters food drive at Marc's Valumart in Erin and Foodland 

in Hillsburgh 

Nov 21 - St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church Community Christmas Bazaar & 

Bake Sale 

Nov 21 - CVC - Caring for your horse farm open house - Terra Cotta 

Nov 25 - Headwaters Annual Tourism Awards Ceremony at the Dufferin County 

Museum & Archives 

Nov 28 - Erin Lion's Club Annual Santa Claus Parade 

Dec 1 - EA - Belfountain Conservation Area, at Caledon Ski Club 

 

Please visit our website for more information regarding community events. 

 

http://www.erin.ca/whats-on/ 

 

6. Adoption of Minutes 

 

3



November 17, 2015 Regular Council Meeting 

 

 3 

Resolution #   15-437 

Moved By  Councillor Smith 

Seconded By  Councillor Brennan 

Be it resolved that Council hereby adopts the following meeting minutes as 

circulated; 

 

November 3, 2015 Regular Meeting 

Carried 

 

7. Business Arising from the Minutes 

 

None. 

 

8. Accounts 

 

Resolution #   15-438 

Moved By  Councillor Brennan 

Seconded By  Councillor Smith 

Be it resolved that the accounts in the amount of $583,242.42 be paid. 

Carried 

 

9. Reports 

 

9.1 Building/Planning/By-Law 

 

9.1.1 Mark Van Patter, County of Wellington Planning - CBM 

Comments 

 

Resolution #   15-439 

Moved By  Councillor Brennan 

Seconded By  Councillor Smith 

Be it resolved that Council receives the report of Mark Van Patter, 

Manager of Planning and Environment, County of Wellington, 

regarding the CBM Hillsburgh Pit Expansion - Official Plan and 

Zoning By-law Amendments. 

Carried 

 

9.1.2 CBO - Building Permit Activity Report 

 

4



November 17, 2015 Regular Council Meeting 

 

 4 

Resolution #   15-440 

Moved By  Councillor Sammut 

Seconded By  Councillor Smith 

Be it resolved that Council herby receives Building Department 

Building Activity Report dated November 17, 2015 for information. 

Carried 

 

9.1.3 CBO - Demolition Report – 63A Trafalgar Road 

 

Resolution #   15-441 

Moved By  Councillor Brennan 

Seconded By  Councillor Smith 

Be it resolved that Council hereby receives Building Department 

Demolition Report, dated November 17, 2015, regarding the 

application for demolition permit to demolish a single residential 

dwelling located at 63A Trafalgar Road,  Town of Erin, Assessment 

Roll No. 23 16 000 009 03300 0000; 

 

 And that Council hereby approves the issuance of the demolition 

permit. 

 

Recorded For Against  

Mayor Alls X   

Councillor Brennan X   

Councillor Sammut  X  

Councillor Smith X   

Councillor Duncan  X  

Results 3 2  

Carried 

 

 

9.2 Water 

 

9.2.1 Interim Water Superintendent - Water Department Project 

Updates 

 

Report deferred to the December 1, 2015 regular meeting. 

 

9.2.2 Interim Water Superintendent - Frozen Water Service Policy 

 

5



November 17, 2015 Regular Council Meeting 

 

 5 

Report deferred to the December 1, 2015 regular meeting. 

 

9.3 Administration 

 

9.3.1 Economic Development Coordinator - 2015 Report  

 

Resolution #   15-442 

Moved By  Councillor Smith 

Seconded By  Councillor Brennan 

Be it resolved that Council receives the report of Economic 

Development Coordinator, Bob Cheetham "Revisiting the Role of 

Economic Development in the Town of Erin in 2015". 

Carried 

 

9.3.2 Economic Development Coordinator -  OMAFRA Funding 

Application – Erin Equine Hub Capacity Building Project 

 

Resolution #   15-443 

Moved By  Councillor Smith 

Seconded By  Councillor Duncan 

Be it resolved that the Town of Erin make application under the 

OMAFRA Rural Economic Development (RED) Program to 

undertake an Erin Equine Hub Capacity Building Project and 

request project funding in the amount of $210,000.00 to be cost-

shared equally on a 50 percent basis. 

Carried 

 

9.3.3 Economic Development Coordinator - Town of Erin 

Community Improvement Plan (CIP) 

 

Resolution #   15-444 

Moved By  Councillor Smith 

Seconded By  Councillor Sammut 

Be it resolved that the Town of Erin approves the establishment of 

a Town of Erin wide Community Improvement Plan (CIP) and that 

staff be instructed to work with the County of Wellington Planning 

Department to incorporate the CIP Planning process into the 

amendments to the Town of Erin Official Plan (OP). 

Carried 

 

6



November 17, 2015 Regular Council Meeting 

 

 6 

9.3.4 CAO - Operational Review Items for Consideration 

 

Council consensus was to change the name of the Corporate 

Strategic Plan to the Operational Plan. 

 

Resolution #   15-445 

Moved By  Councillor Duncan 

Seconded By  Councillor Smith 

Be it resolved that Council receives the CAO/Town Manager’s 

report on items for future consideration relating to the operational 

review conducted by StrategyCorp. 

Carried 

 

9.3.5 CAO - Canine Control Contract 

 

 

 

Resolution #   15-446 

Moved By  Councillor Sammut 

Seconded By  Councillor Duncan 

Be It Resolved That Council supports the recommendation of the 

CAO/Town Manager to award the 3 year canine contract to the 

OSPCA (Orangeville Branch) at their quoted price of $31,000.00 

with the provision of an option to renew the contract for an 

additional 3 years at the discretion of the municipality. 

Carried 

*Added item: 

The Director of Finance updated Council on the release of the Ontario Municipal 

Partnership Fund 2016 grant amounts. The Town of Erin's grant has increased 

by $7,300 to $595,300, which is 1.24% over 2015.  A new key factor was 

introduced  called "Farm Area Measure" which would increase funding if the 

municipality had over 70% farm properties, however Erin falls short of this factor 

as the percentage is 61.5%. 

 

10. Correspondence 

 

Resolution #   15-447 

Moved By  Councillor Sammut 

Seconded By  Councillor Duncan 

7



November 17, 2015 Regular Council Meeting 

 

 7 

Be it resolved that Council receives correspondence items 10.1 to 10.5 for 

information. 

Carried 

 

11. Closed Session 

 

Resolution #   15-448 

Moved By  Councillor Duncan 

Seconded By  Councillor Smith 

Be it resolved that Council adjourns the meeting to proceed into a closed 

session at the hour of 9:15pm to discuss the matter(s) pertaining to: 

• personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local 

board employees (HR Matter) 

Carried 

 

12. Return From Closed Session 

 

Resolution #   15-449 

Moved By  Councillor Sammut 

Seconded By  Councillor Duncan 

Be it resolved that the meeting be reconvened at the hour of 10:13pm. 

Carried 

 

13. By-Laws 

 

Resolution #   15-450 

Moved By  Councillor Sammut 

Seconded By  Councillor Duncan 

Be it resolved that By-Law number 15 – 46 (confirming) is hereby passed. 

Carried 

 

14. Notice of Motion 

 

None. 

 

15. Adjournment 

 

Resolution #   15-451 

Moved By  Councillor Duncan 

Seconded By  Councillor Sammut 

8



November 17, 2015 Regular Council Meeting 

 

 8 

Be it resolved that the meeting be adjourned at the hour of 10:19pm. 

Carried 

 

 

 

_________________________ 

Mayor Allan Alls 

 

 

_________________________ 

Clerk Dina Lundy 

 

 

9



TOWN OF ERIN 
 

COUNCIL REPORT  
 

Town of Erin Annual Emergency Management Report 2015 1 

 

To:  Mayor Allan Alls and Members of Council for the Town of Erin.  
From:   Linda Dickson, MCIP, RPP, Emergency Manager/CEMC 
Date:  December 1, 2015 
Re:  Emergency Management Program Report for 2015 
 

Background 

The following outlines the municipality’s requirements as set out in the Emergency 
Management and Civil Protection Act and how the municipality has fulfilled these requirements 
for 2015.   

Program Committee 

A joint Emergency Management Program Committee was held March 27, 2015 and included 
HIRA training (Geoff Coulson and Weather Trends) and a focused discussion.  On 
October 23, members of the control group met to review the Town’s Hazard Identification and 
Risk Assessment and specific Township program items.   

Emergency Response Plan: 
Changes to the Emergency Response Plan were reviewed at the Joint Emergency Management 
Program Committee meeting on March 27, 2015.   The changes are minor and will be brought 
forward for consideration in 2016 with other changes to the plan including Source Water 
Protection policies.  

Training: 

Several members of the Town’s Control Group have attended provincially mandated training 
for 2015 which included training and information from Geoff Coulson of Environment Canada 
on March 27, 2015 regarding weather trends.   A training session on Service Continuity 
(Business Continuity) and the importance of note taking was held on August 11, 2015 and 
November 18, 2015.  Attendance lists are being recorded for these training sessions. 
 
Additional training included a workshop for elected Officials on January 28, 2015 which all of 
Council attended, a Crisis communication workshop on June 4, 2015 and Scribe training on June 
17, 2015. 

Exercises  

On July 28, 2015 a notification exercise was held and included Town staff and members of the 
Municipality’s Control Group.   
 
The Town held its required annual emergency management exercise on November 6, 2015 
which was based upon a fire in the downtown core of the urban centre of Erin.     
 

10



TOWN OF ERIN 
 

COUNCIL REPORT  
 

Town of Erin Annual Emergency Management Report 2015 2 

 

The aim of the exercise was to test the activation and set up the Town’s Emergency Operation 
Centre, test the EOC response procedures using IMS and provide training for new control group 
members. 
 
A few of the observations/recommendations out of the exercise debrief included request for 
specific types of training for control group members.  For the 2016 training program, many of 
the training recommendations will be given consideration as part of the required control group 
training.  The debrief discussion included the need for a generator for Centre 2000. 

Critical Infrastructure 

The Emergency Management and Civil Protection Act require municipalities to identify facilities 
and other elements of critical infrastructure that are at risk of being affected by emergencies.  
Staff reviews this list annually and updates as necessary.   
 
The Critical Infrastructure mapping was completed on the County’s Emergency Management 
COP using the County’s GeoGortex GIS mapping.  Training for municipal staff will be arranged in 
2016. 
 
Town staff continues to participate in a County wide sector working group for water and waste 
water.  The group meets regularly about every three months and held their second annual 
operations training day on October 29.   

Public Education: 

A number of public education events were held this year.  The following is a list of the main 
public education initiatives held. 
 
1. The “Be Better Prepared” Booklet was updated and redistributed to all households in 

2015. Additional copies of the booklet can be acquired by contacting the Emergency 

Management Division or on the County’s website 

2. Emergency management information was made available at the Wellington County 

Libraries and Municipal Offices during Emergency Preparedness Week. 

3. A County-wide draw for a generator along with municipal draws for weather radios 

were held throughout the County of Wellington’s 14 Library Branches and each 

Municipal Office during week 

4. The County page in the Wellington Advertiser regularly contains emergency public 

information and a number of emergency management advertisements were placed in 

local Newspapers during Emergency Preparedness Week  

11



TOWN OF ERIN 
 

COUNCIL REPORT  
 

Town of Erin Annual Emergency Management Report 2015 3 

 

Further Enhancements: 

1. Strategic Planning:    The After Action Reports from both the April 2013 and December 
2013 Ice Storms provided good lessons learned and recommendations to improve our 
emergency management programs.  Many of these recommendations were applicable 
on a County wide basis.  In order to develop a more appropriate and consistent 
response framework to events like the ice storms that often impact several 
municipalities within the same jurisdiction, a focus discussion group session was 
proposed to include an invite to all of the members of the County and member 
municipalities Emergency Management Control Groups. 

 
At the March 27, 2015 joint Emergency Management Program Committee meeting a 
focused discussion was held and participants were divided into groups to consider the 
following topics:  

 
i. Shelters/Cooling Centres/Evacuation Centres  

 
ii. Generators/funding –  

 
iii. Time Frames (48 -72 hours) 

 
iv. Crisis Communications  

 
  The following are the key recommendations from the focused discussion session. 

 

 Pre-identify shelters/evacuation centres and promote the location to residents as part 
of our public education program.  However, there are very few sites with back-up power 
that meet the Health Canada requirements for overnight accommodations within the 
County of Wellington.  Emergency Management and Social Services will continue to 
work with Red Cross to identify appropriate sites in the County suitable for overnight 
accommodations. 

 

 Agreed that if any part of the community is in need reception centres/shelters should be 
opened and where possible we should avoid using fire halls for reception 
centres/shelters.  Shelters should be opened within 48 hours of a situation (power 
outage) and it should be the decision of the EOC when to open and what sites to open. 

 

 Make  list be made of all potential shelter sites, identify if they have back-up power and 
what facilities in the site are available with or without back-up power. 

 

12



TOWN OF ERIN 
 

COUNCIL REPORT  
 

Town of Erin Annual Emergency Management Report 2015 4 

 

 Have a pool of municipal generators that could be moved around the county.  It was 
suggested/agreed to that this could be funded through the County; or County staff 
could assist with bulk buying of generators. 

 

 Need to maintain fuel supply for generators, generally 72 hours is considered 
appropriate time frame. 

 

 Continue to promote 72 hour “Be Better Prepared” in our public education across the 
County. 

 

 Create a standardized heat and cold weather extreme policy.  This policy is currently 
being drafted.   

 

 Where and if possible promote a staged evacuation process such as Stage 1 – elderly, 
those with very young children and those with medical need; Stage 2- would be the rest 
of the community. 

 

 We need to ensure we make appropriate use of all forms of technology available.  
Different demographics use different technologies.  Create ready to use communication 
templates. 

 

 There needs to be ongoing training for communication officers and spokespersons.  
 

 For single municipal events, local staff may be able to deal with the communication 
needs of an emergency but for larger and county wide events need to access the 
resources of the County Communications Division and the Wellington OPP media 
officers. 

 
The objective for the 2016 work plan is to look at each of these bullet points in more 
detail in order to determine the feasibility of implementing each of the 
recommendation.  

 
2. ODRAP Review  

 In 2015, the Province of Ontario – Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing(MMAH) - 
undertook a review of the Ontario Disaster Relief Assistance Program which has been in 
existence for approximately 50 years.   The Province has announced that changes to the 
current funding program will be implemented and guidelines established in 2016.  
MMAH has been conducting presentations throughout the province on the forthcoming 
changes to their funding methods for natural disasters in Ontario. 

 
 
 

13



TOWN OF ERIN 
 

COUNCIL REPORT  
 

Town of Erin Annual Emergency Management Report 2015 5 

 

3. Public Alerting 
Bruce Power has submitted to the CRTC a Part 1 Application (2015-0522-3) requesting 
the CRTC to mandate wireless carriers to put in place wireless public alerting now, 
similar to the alerts now being forwarded to the public by Television and Radio 
Broadcasters. 
 
The consultation period for this application closed on July 4, 2015. The Emergency 
Manager has reached out to Bruce Nuclear and they have advised that they will keep 
our office informed of any decision or direction from the CRTC.  We support their 
request and will be monitoring and reviewing the CRTC website for information as well 
as correspondence from Bruce Power as it becomes available.  More information on the 
application can be found on the CRTC website. 
 

4. FCM Consultation 
The Emergency Manager/CEMC has been asked to participate in a consultation process 
regarding new Federal emergency management programs including:   
  

 A Federal emergency preparedness funding program. The former Joint Emergency 
Preparedness Program which provided municipalities with monies to prepare and 
promote emergency management programs.  This funding program has not been 
supported by the Federal Government since 2013.   

 Opportunities to expand the National Disaster Mitigation Program (NDMP). The 
Emergency/Manager/CEMC provided feedback and information to FCM staff during 
their submission to the Federal Government on the program. 

 Consider ways to improve the Disaster Financial Assistance Arrangements (DFAA) 
program eligibility Guidelines. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

THAT Council for the Town of Erin accepts the annual emergency management report, and 
further THAT this report serves as the annual review of the Town’s Emergency Management 
Program for 2015. 
 
Respectfully submitted 
 

 
Linda Dickson, MCIP, RPP  
Emergency Manager 

14



15



to Town of Erin Council

December 1, 2015

by Deborah Martin-Downs
Chief Administrative Officer

2016 Budget Presentation

16



• Partnerships

• Youth, Public Education

• Planning for our Future

• Efficiency and Effectiveness

• CVC Budget

Outline

17



18



Conservation Areas Marketing Partnership

Partnerships

19



Conservation Areas Visitation

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 (mid-October)

108,900
118,200

129,200
135,400

201,400

Partnerships

20



Municipal Partnerships

Mississauga Road LID Project

Brampton SNAP

Partnerships

P
ho

to
, M

ar
tin

 L
am

pr
ec

ht

21



Communities, Corporations, Home and Land 
Owners, Volunteers

Partnerships

22



Conservation Youth Corps

Youth, Public Education

23



Education

Youth, Public Education

24



Credit River Watershed
Natural Heritage System

Planning for the Future

25



Land Acquisition

Planning for the Future

26



Credit Valley Trail

Planning for the Future

27



Planting for the Future

28



Efficiency and Effectiveness

29



Efficiency and Effectiveness

Digital Transformation

30



Budget

31



2016 CVC General Levy
Municipal Apportionment

Municipal Funders %  Apportionment Funding
$000s

% 
Change

Region of Peel 91.7024 $7,673 3.42

Halton Region 4.9499 $414 3.36

Township of Amaranth 0.0111 $1 3.34

Township of East Garafraxa 0.0562 $5 2.48

Town of Erin 0.6661 $56 3.42

Town of Mono 0.1071 $9 5.12

Town of Orangeville 2.5073 $210 3.58

TOTAL 100 $8,368 3.42

32



Municipality 2016

(000’s)

%

Change

2017

(000’s)

% 

Change

2018

(000’s)

%

Change

Region of Peel 21,870 5.49 23,701 8.4 24,230 2.5

Region of Halton 793 32.05 844 6.5 877 3.9

Town of Orangeville 262 3.66 284 8.4 297 4.4

Town of Erin 70 2.62 75 8.4 79 4.4

Town of Mono 11 5.18 12 8.5 13 5.5

Township of East Garafraxa 6 2.62 6 8.4 7 5.5

Township of Amaranth 1 3.66 1 8.3 1 5.7

TOTAL LEVY 23,013 6.20 24,923 8.3 25,504 2.3

Budget Forecast By Municipality
Total Levy Forecast, Year to Year

33



2016 Commonly Shared Levies
as it relates to the Town of Erin

2015 2016

General Levy (total) $8,091,093 $8,367,620 

Erin’s Share $53,895 $55,737

Special Levy (total shared) $2,008,681 $2,088,905

Erin’s Share $13,380 $13,915

Total Erin Levy $67,275 $69,652

2015 CVC Gross 
Budget

2016 CVC Gross 
Budget

% Change $ Change

$67,275 $69,652 3.53% 2,377

Impact to the Town of Erin

34



Leveraging Municipal Funding

2015
$000s

CVC additional grants and funding $610

CVCF grants, donations, other revenue $1,079

Cash equivalent of work by volunteers $483

TOTAL $2,172

35



36



REQUEST TO BE A DELEGATION BEFORE COUNCIL

Council meetings are held the first Tuesday of each month at l";00 pm and the third Tuesday of each month
at 6:30 pm, unless otherwise posted. Please note that there is only one meeting during July and August.
The Requests to appear before Council must be received in writing by the Clerk NO LATER than noon of the
WEDNESDAY immediately preceding the scheduled Council meeting complete with a copy of the
presentation materials as detailed in the delegation protocol on page 2. This form must be complete and
legible in order to be accepted. The Clerk will evaluate this request, and assign a presentation date once it
has been deemed appropriate.

MEETING DATE BEING REQUESTED:

1 Choice znd cho¡ce

V1";5't^rr*,, o S¿a[-,i, r (JnrrJ¡tt
lrtarne or ¿ãtáüãtétsl òr er;rp [eþiãiäniat¡vd U
PURPOSE OF DETEGATION E ATTACH FUtL PRESENT

p resents

C-c, r.{r *".or.Q, +t " 
-T-ov¡,', ø¡ Éin Cetl^t\^--[¿ ..c"rþ\n,'r*- +t"-

fc¡¡¡r, c¡- . -L \"^.1-i

DESIRED ACTION OF COUNCIT THAT YOU ARE SEEKING:

CONTACT INFORMATION:

Name: l'Y\

g*ó*rf\s €'+ ¡r ¿¡*Jr-t--t,
(=f r Yì

fl--c, L',/-(-- o^
*Tän^.J n

Address:

Phone: \s11- n33 "7baL r QaL E-Maif: K¿r-rì .gD e¿-^)*CS .ce.-fi

Once a date and time has been established, the Clerk's Department will contact you by phone, fax or e-mail. Please ensure you

receive confirmation, and follow up with the Clerk if you have not.

I have read the excerpt from the Town of Erin Procedural By-Law (on page 2 of this form), and understand that the
information contained herein, including any attachments, will become public documents, included in the meeting agendas,
and posted on the Town website.

I also understand that my presentation and any supporting documentation must be submitted with this delegation form and
typed or legibly written, in order for this form to be accepted. The completed form and attachments may be submitted by e-

mail to dina.lundv@erin.ca. ALL submissions must be received by the Clerk no later than L2:00 pm on the WEDNESDAY

immediately preceding the meeting.
I also understand that if any correspondence relating to this request contains obscene or improper matters, language, or

does not meet the requirements of the delegation protocol, the Clerk shall decide whether it should be included in the
a for a Council meeting and if not, I will be notified

rllnf , z-þfr.f

IL

Your nome, address, comments, and any other personal informotion is collected ond maintained for the purpose of creoting o
record ovoiloble to the generdl public pursuont to Section 27 of the Municipal Freedom of lnformation and Protection oÍ Privocy
Act, R.S.O. 7990, cM.56 as amended. Questions about this collection should be directed to the Clerk, The Corporotion of the Town
of Erin, 5684 Trafalgar Road, Hillsburgh, ON NAB 2A. Call: (519) 855-4407 Ext 233 or Toll Free 7-877-8L8-2888
Fqx: 855-4821 E-mail Website:

agen

of

Page 1 of 2

Date

37



 

Staff Report 

 

Report #:   W15-2015            
 
Date:    November-17-15     
 
Submitted By: Joe Babin – Interim Water Superintendent 
      
 

Subject: Water Department Project Updates  
 
 

 

Recommendations: 

 

Be it resolved that council receives the Interim Water Superintendent’s Report concerning 

recent Water Department Projects. 

 

Background: 

 

In June 2015, The Erin Drinking Water System Communication and PLC Upgrades to SCADA 

project was approved by resolution 15-239.  The installation of the wireless radios and bases 

at Well 7, Well 8 and the Water Tower were completed the first week of September.  The 

installation of the new PLC and SCADA system was completed on October 2, 2015 and is 

fully operational.   This project was completed in house with staff and our computer 

programmer.  Staff were acting consultants for establishing the daily and monthly reports and 

the operational set points for each of the three sites to ensure the requirements of the Safe 

Drinking Water Act were met.  This project has advanced the water department by allowing 

operators more information in order to optimize the operations.  We now have the ability to 

trend Chlorine residuals, Pressure, Flows and Well Levels in real time, instead of in five 

minute captures.  This phase of the project is now completed and the second phase will be 

budgeted in the 2016 budget in order to meet our goals of bringing both Water Systems into 

SCADA reporting.  

 

The Glendevon reservoir rehabilitation commenced on August 31, 2015 and the well was 

offline for the interior repairs.  The interior repairs were completed on September 25, 2015 

and the well was back online October 1, 2015 after a leak test and microbiological sampling 

was completed.  The exterior repairs were extensive after exposure and were completed in 

mid-October.   The infrastructure was damaged due to the age of the infrastructure and the 

effects of the severe past winter.  Once the project was underway, there was unforeseen 

extensive damage of the corner exterior walls which resulted in twisting due to the severe 

temperature.  As such, the exterior walls were then chiselled out, injected with non shrinking 

grout, waterproofed and insulated prior to back filling.  Due to the extra work involved in 

38



 
 

repairs to the exterior, the cost exceeded the original quotation.  This project allows the Town 

to extend the life of the infrastructure between eight and twelve years and until the future 

plans of the Hillsburgh Water System is completed through the Class EA Process.   

 

 

 

Financial Impact: 

 

By undertaking the PLC Upgrades to SCADA project in house, the Town Erin Water 

Department was able to significantly save costs and still achieve our goal of full SCADA.  The 

total cost of the project was $168,962.31 including HST.   

 

This project was not allocated for in the 2015 Budget, but became an issue that required 

Council’s authorization to make the repairs to ensure a consistent supply of safe drinking 

water.  This is the commitment of Top Management and The Water Department that is stated 

in the Town of Erin Drinking Water Quality Management System Policy.  The cost to extend 

the life of the Glendevon reservoir was $54,774.42 including HST. 

 

Consultation: 

SCADA: 

The Town of Erin Water Department 

Staff at Selog 

Staff at Novanet 

The Town of Erin Finance Department 

Glendevon: 

The Town of Erin Water Department 

Triton Engineering 

 

Communications Plan: 

 

Council Reports 

 

Conclusion: 

 

In Conclusion, Two major projects that The Town of Erin Water Department were focused on 

are now complete.  Details regarding the Second Phase of The SCADA project will be 

forthcoming in the near future. 

 

Appendices: 

 

Appendix A:  Triton Engineering Letter of Completion for Glendevon Reservoir. 

 

39



40



41



 

Staff Report 

 

Report #:   W16-2015             
 
Date:    November-17-15     
 
Submitted By: Joe Babin 
      
 

Subject: Frozen Water Service Policy  
 
 

 

Recommendations: 

 

Be it resolved that Council approves the Frozen Water Service Policy; 

 

And that Council supports the recommendations brought forward from the Water 

Department. 

 

Background: 

 

The Town of Erin Water Department responded to 44 Frozen Water Services this past winter.  

This required a considerable amount of resources including staff time and equipment.  This 

spring the Water Department conducted meetings to review the issues and develop a plan of 

action for future events of Frozen Water Services.  Staff has investigated each property that 

had a Frozen Service this past year and has made recommendations for each individual 

property.  We concluded that the Municipal Water Servicing By-Law 11-47 needed to be 

updated to include Frozen Water Services and that was completed in October 2015.  The 

Water Department attended a Wellington County/City of Guelph workshop on October 29, 

2015 to discuss Frozen Water Services with other communities across the County.  We have 

now developed a Town of Erin Water Department Frozen Water Service Policy that will be 

effective and achievable for The Town but also consistent with the rest of Wellington County.  

The Water Department is looking for Council’s approval for this policy, so it will be in effect for 

this coming winter.  Once approved, the Water Department Staff will begin communications 

with property owners who have had frozen water service issues in the past. 

 

Financial Impact: 

 

None 

 

Consultation: 

 

42



 
 

Town of Erin Water Department Staff 

 

Communications Plan: 

 

Council Report and Correspondence with Property Owners 

 

Conclusion: 

 

The Town of Erin Water Department is trying to be proactive in creating set policies to deal 

with Frozen Water Services for both Hillsburgh and Erin water customers.   

 

Appendices: 

 

Appendix A:  Town of Erin Frozen Water Service Policy 

 

43



W:\Works\Water\Non-QMS\E18-Emergency Management\Frozen Water Service Policy  Last Revised 11/06/2015     Page 1 of 7 
 

 
 
    
 
 
 
POLICY PURPOSE AND GOALS 
 
The overall purpose of this Frozen Water Service Policy is to prevent and manage interruptions to the Town’s 
supply of water, caused by temporary freezing of Town and/or Customer Water Services, so that Customers 
maintain reliable, continuous access to water. 
 
Core goals of this policy include: 
 

1) To implement proactive first priority measures to prevent freezing of Water Services. 
2) To provide Customers who have Frozen Water Services with timely access to continuous, reliable, safe,    

potable water. 
3) To maintain compliance with utility regulations and health guidelines, while best managing the Town’s 

water resources during responses to Frozen Water Service events. 
 
POLICY DESCRIPTION 
 
This Frozen Water Service Policy is comprised of programs that are implemented to achieve the above purpose and 
goals.  Often the programs overlap and work in tandem. 
 
The specific programs comprising this Policy include the following: 
 

1) Freeze Prevention Program:  a program that requires Customers to take specific actions to prevent the 
freezing of Water Services. 

 
2) Frozen Water Service Thawing Program:  a program whereby The Town of Erin Water Department may, 

based on available technology, and where resources allow, attempt to thaw Frozen Water Services which are 
readily accessible. 

 
3) Temporary Water Service Program:  a program that includes the installation of Temporary Water Service 

Lines providing temporary water supplies to Customers who are without water due to Frozen Water 
Services. 

 
4) Temporary Water Access Program:  a program to provide eligible Customers with access, for domestic use, 

to temporary water supplies, other than by means of a Temporary Water Service. 
 
These programs are more fully described below. 
 
 

Town of Erin Water Department 
Frozen Water Service Policy 

 
Effective date November 17, 2015 

 
Approved by Joe Babin – Interim Water Superintendent 

Approved by Town of Erin Council (pending) 

 

44



W:\Works\Water\Non-QMS\E18-Emergency Management\Frozen Water Service Policy  Last Revised 11/06/2015     Page 2 of 7 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 
Customer:  any person who has an active water account with the Town of Erin Water Department. 
 
Non-potable water:  usable for non-consumptive uses (for example, water which can be used for toilet flushing, but 
not for drinking or cooking). 
 
Potable water:  usable for all consumptive uses (for example, water which can be used for drinking or cooking). 
 
Temporary Water Service:  a temporary supply of water to a Customer who is without water due to Frozen Water 
Service. 
 
Temporary Water Service Donor:  a Customer with an active water supply who provides a Temporary Water 
Service to a neighbor through a Temporary Water Service Line connected to the donating Customer’s own Water 
Service. 
 
Temporary Water Service Line:  a Water Pipe used to provide a Temporary Water Service. 
 
Water Service:  any service pipe which supply’s water from the water main to the Customer. 
 
RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
The Town of Erin Water Department will: 
 

• Respond to Customer Frozen Water Service issues in accordance with this Policy and provide timely service 
and communication to Customers. 

 
Each applicable Customer will: 
 

• Comply with this Policy. 
• Ensure that the Customer’s own Water Pipes meet the Building Code standards in place to prevent freezing. 
• Take proactive actions to maintain the Customer’s own Water Pipes/Water Service to prevent freezing. 
• Maintain adequate heat to the Customer’s own Water Pipes to reduce the threat of internal freezing. 
• Pay all home-based energy costs incurred when the Customer applies heat to exposed Water Pipes on the 

Customer’s property to cure or prevent Water Pipe/Service freezing, whether instructed to do so by The 
Town of Erin Water Department or voluntarily doing so. 

• Permit safe access to the Customer’s property by The Town of Erin Water Department if the Customer has 
requested assistance in addressing Frozen Water Services. 

• Follow the provisions of this Policy and any instructions provided by The Town of Erin Water Department. 
• Operate and maintain the Water Pipes on the Customer’s property. 
• Contribute to the costs of these programs as set out in this Policy. 

 
Each applicable Temporary Water Service Donor will: 
 

• Allow The Town of Erin Water Department safe entry to the Donor’s property to install Temporary Water 
Services. 
 

 
 
 
CUSTOMER SERVICE 

45



W:\Works\Water\Non-QMS\E18-Emergency Management\Frozen Water Service Policy  Last Revised 11/06/2015     Page 3 of 7 
 

 
In Frozen Water Service events, The Town of Erin Water Department will provide the following customer service 
functions: 
 

1) Customer Service Desk 
- The Town of Erin Water Department will maintain an open customer service desk accessible by 

telephone, email and walk-in on Monday to Friday between 8:30am and 4:30pm. 
 

2) After Hours On-Call Operator Support 
- Customers impacted by Frozen Water Services from 4:30pm to 8:30am may contact the Town of Erin 

Water Department On-Call Operator at 519-830-8600. 
 

3) Service Request Response Priorities 
- The Town of Erin Water Department will address Customer Service requests on a “first come, first 

served” basis.  Upon receipt of a service request, The Town of Erin Water Department will aim to 
initiate a response within twenty-four hours. 

- The Town of Erin Water Department will place recurring Customer service requests regarding Frozen 
Water Services into the “first come, first served” queue for response. 

 
4) Communications 

- The Town of Erin Water Department will provide specific updates and timely communications to 
Customers with Frozen Water Services for the duration of the Frozen Water Service event (for example, 
via email or delivered hard copy letter). 

- The Town of Erin Water Department will provide general updates through appropriate media (for 
example, social media, and Town’s website). 

 
SPECIFIC PROGRAMS 
 
 

1) Freeze Prevention Program 
 
The Freeze Prevention Program requires Customers to take specific actions to prevent the freezing of Water 
Services. 

 
In the late fall of each year, The Town of Erin Water Department will provide advance communication to 
Customers regarding this program, including Customer obligations. 

 
FREEZE PREVENTION PROGRAM TRIGGER 

 
The Town of Erin Water Department will activate the Freeze Prevention Program if the treated water 

temperature reaches 4oC, as measured at The Town of Erin Water Tower and Distribution System temperature 
monitoring locations. 

 
Once the Freeze Prevention Program trigger has been reached, The Town of Erin Water Department will 
communicate with those Customers whose properties have historically experienced interruptions in water supply as 
a result of Frozen Water Services, requesting them to take the actions set out in this program. 
 
Once the Freeze Prevention Program Trigger has been reached, each applicable Customer will: 

i. Ensure that the property has plumbing, drains and a nearby catch basin that will accommodate continuous, 
unattended running of water. 

ii. Begin running water to waste at the property when instructed by The Town of Erin Water Department in 
order to prevent Water Service Freezing. 

46



W:\Works\Water\Non-QMS\E18-Emergency Management\Frozen Water Service Policy  Last Revised 11/06/2015     Page 4 of 7 
 

iii. Notify Water Services at the earliest opportunity when an interruption in water supply occurs at the 
property. 

 
2) Frozen Water Service Thawing Program 

 
Under the Frozen Water Service Thawing Program, The Town of Erin Water Department may, based on available 
technology, and where resources allow, attempt to thaw Frozen Water Services which are readily accessible. 
 
Town of Erin Water Department: 
 

i. Will receive each Customer request for thawing and assess whether thawing is feasible in particular 
circumstances, and if so, provide the thawing service. 

ii. If conditions do not continue to support the safe use of existing thawing technology or if thawing stops 
being technically feasible after two hours, cease the thawing activities. 

iii. If notified by a Customer that the Customer has had a third party undertake thawing before The Town of 
Erin Water Department was able to do so, may close the Customer’s pending service request and/or 
determine what (if any) further field actions should be undertaken to address Frozen Water Service issues at 
the Customer’s property. 

 
Each applicable Customer with Frozen Water Services: 
 

i. Will ensure that the Customer’s property is safe and accessible for The Town of Erin Water Department to 
carry-out the thawing activity. 

ii. May initiate third party thawing of Water Services but must notify The Town of Erin Water Department in 
advance. 

 
3) Temporary Water Service Program 

 
The Temporary Water Service Program includes the installation of Temporary Water Service Lines providing 
temporary water supplies to Customers who are without water due to a Frozen Water Service. 
 
Water Services will consider field conditions and technical constraints and may decide not to install a Temporary 
Water Service if field conditions or technical feasibility are unsatisfactory. 
 
Out of concern for public health, The Town of Erin Water Department does not condone or endorse the private 
installation of temporary water supplies.  Any Customer who installs or operates a private temporary water supply 
does so at the Customer’s own sole risk and expense. 
 
The Town of Erin Water Department will: 
 

i. If field conditions are appropriate and the installation is technically feasible, install a Temporary Water 
Service Line for a Customer with a Frozen Water Service at no cost to the Customer or the Temporary 
Water Service Donor. 

ii. Provide and install a hose bib backflow prevention device in any instance where a backflow prevention 
device was removed by The Town of Erin Water Department to accommodate a Temporary Water Service 
Line Installation. 

iii. At the end of the Frozen Water Service event, remove the Temporary Water Service Line and take water 
meter readings. 
 

 
Customers receiving the Temporary Water Service will: 
 

47



W:\Works\Water\Non-QMS\E18-Emergency Management\Frozen Water Service Policy  Last Revised 11/06/2015     Page 5 of 7 
 

i. Provide written authorization to The Town of Erin Water Department to install a Temporary Water Service 
Line. 

ii. Obtain approval from a Temporary Water Service Donor and provide this information to The Town of Erin 
Water Department. 

iii. Prepare for The Town of Erin Water Department’s installation of a Temporary Water Service Line by: 
• Providing clear walkways and clear access to exterior unfrozen and undamaged hose bibs for the 

installation. 
• If site conditions are met, run water continuously to waste to prevent freezing of the Temporary Water 

Service Line as instructed by The Town of Erin Water Department. 
 
Temporary Water Service Donors providing water to a Customer will: 
 

i. Provide written authorization to The Town of Erin Water Department to install a Temporary Water Service 
Line. 

ii. Continue to maintain active supply of water to the Temporary Water Service Line as instructed by The 
Town of Erin Water Department to prevent freezing. 

 
4) Temporary Water Access Program 

 
The Temporary Water Access Program provides eligible Customers with access, for domestic use, to temporary 
water supplies other by means of Temporary Water Service. 
 
To be eligible for this program, the Customer must have: 
 

- A water servicing issue that cannot be verified by The Town of Erin Water Department as limited to the 
Customer’s own Water Pipes, 

- A Frozen Water Service, and 
- No Temporary Water Service supplying Potable water. 

 
The Town of Erin Water Department will: 
 

i. After initial notification by a Customer of a Frozen Water Service, and if the Customer is eligible under this 
program, register the Customer under this program. 

ii. Provide each eligible Customer with instructions on how to access resources (for example, shower facilities, 
filling stations). 

 
Each eligible Customer will: 
 

i. Notify The Town of Erin Water Department at the earliest opportunity when an interruption in water supply 
occurs at the Customer’s property. 

ii. Provide notice to The Town of Erin Water Department within 48 hours after normal water supply has been 
restored to the Customer’s property.  Upon such notice, The Town of Erin Water Department will terminate 
that Customer’s access to the resources under this program. 

 
Various resources are available to Customers eligible for this program.  Instructions on how, when and where to 
access these resources will be provided. 
 
 
 
 
The resources include: 
 

48



W:\Works\Water\Non-QMS\E18-Emergency Management\Frozen Water Service Policy  Last Revised 11/06/2015     Page 6 of 7 
 

• Fill Stations - available at designated facilities during designated time periods. 
 

• Shower Facilities – will be available at Customer request at the Town of Erin community centres. 
 

Water Services will: 
 

i. Make the resource available to eligible Customers only as set out above. 
 
Each applicable Customer will: 
 

i. Obtain and transport suitable, personal use water containers for filling at The Town of Erin Fill Stations. 
ii. Obtain the Customer’s own transportation to and from all locations where the resources under this program 

are available. 
 
SPECIAL ASSISTANCE 
 
The Town of Erin Water Department may, in special circumstances, approve the use of additional resources, 
beyond those available in the foregoing programs for vulnerable customers. 
 
PROGRAM COSTS 
 
Customers who participate in the Frozen Water Service programs will share in the costs as set out below. 
 
If a Customer has chosen not to participate in the programs under this policy or to follow the direction of The Town 
of Erin Water Department, The Town of Erin Water Department will bill to that Customer any recurring service 
request calls, at call-out rates set out in the Town’s Water Rate By-Law. 
 
The costs of The Town of Erin Water Department are based on actual labor costs, payroll burden costs, overhead 
and administration costs, vehicle, equipment, materials and all property restoration costs. 
 
1.  Freeze Prevention Program 
 
A Customer instructed by The Town of Erin Water Department to run water to waste is responsible for the payment 
of water monthly basic charges and the flat rate fee, as defined in the Town’s Water Rate By-Law. 
 
A Customer who runs water to prevent freezing, without the direct instruction of The Town of Erin Water 
Department, will be responsible for the full payment of water monthly basic charges and consumption charges, as 
defined in The Town’s Water Rate By-Law. 
 
2.  Frozen Water Service Thawing Program 
 
If The Town of Erin Water Department thaws a Frozen Water Service that was caused by the freezing of the 
Town’s portion of the Water Service Line or the Water main, the Town of Erin Water Department will pay the 
costs of the thawing.  If The Town of Erin Water Department thaws a Frozen Water Service that was only frozen on 
The Customer’s portion of the Water Service Line, then the Customer will pay the costs of the thawing, as defined 
in the Town’s Water Rate By-Law. 
 
If a Customer wishes a more immediate thawing of only the Customer’s portion of the Frozen Water Service, than 
The Town of Erin Water Department can provide, then the Customer may retain a third party to thaw the Frozen 
Water Service at the Customer’s own cost. 
 

49



W:\Works\Water\Non-QMS\E18-Emergency Management\Frozen Water Service Policy  Last Revised 11/06/2015     Page 7 of 7 
 

If a Customer wishes a more immediate thawing of both the Customer’s portion and the Town’s portion of the 
Frozen Water Service, than The Town of Erin Water Department can provide, then the Customer may retain a third 
party to thaw the Frozen Water Service, with the costs shared equally between The Town of Erin Water Department 
and the Customer, as long as: 
 

- The Customer provides, in advance, the particulars of the proposed thawing; 
- The Town of Erin Water Department approves the particulars of the proposed thawing; 
- The Customer proceeds with the thawing as proposed; and 
- The Customer reports the outcome of the thawing to The Town of Erin Water Department. 

 
3.  Temporary Water Service Program 
 
Each Temporary Water Service Recipient and Donor is responsible for the payment of water monthly basic charges 
and the flat rate fee, as defined in The Town’s Water Rate By-Law.  The Donor will not be charged for the extra 
water consumption being used by the neighbor.  
 
4.  Temporary Water Access Program 
 
Use of the resources under the Temporary Water Access Program is, as long as such use is within the limitations set 
out in this policy, free to qualifying Customers. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This policy content has been modified from the content of The City of Guelph’s Draft Frozen Water Pipe Policy 

50



 

Staff Report 

 

Report #:   2015-05C            
 
Date:    November-17-15     
 
Submitted By: Dina Lundy, Clerk 
      
 

Subject: Proposed Corporate Services Fee By-Law  
 
 

 

Recommendations: 

 

Be it resolved that Council receives the Clerk’s report regarding a Proposed Corporate 

Services Fee By-Law; 

And that Council will consider the proposed By-law at its next regular meeting on December 

15, 2015. 

 

Background: 

 

Part XII Fees and Charges, Section 391 of the Municipal Act, 2001 authorizes a municipality 

to impose fees or charges for services. The administrative staff in several departments 

perform a number of Corporate Services for which there are currently no charges, and for 

which most municipalities do charge on a pay by use basis in order to help recover the costs 

of services which are provided by request.    

The Town has been generous in providing some administrative services at no cost, however 

with increased use and to ensure fiscal responsibility to all ratepayers; it is prudent that the 

Town establish fees for these services.  In addition, the services are sometimes provided to 

those who are not residents of the Town, for example in the case of commissioning 

documents. 

Schedule A of the proposed by-law incorporates some of our current services which have 

charges in place, along with new charges to be imposed upon the passing of this by-law 

based on charges researched and obtained from other Municipalities.  

Going forward, senior staff will be working on a consolidated fee by-law to incorporate all fees 

under one by-law that can be reviewed regularly. 

 

Financial Impact: 

 

A small amount of revenue will be realized going forward to offset costs of administrative 

services. 

 

51



 
 

Consultation: 

 

Other Municipalities, CAO, and Director of Finance 

 

Communications Plan: 

 

Council Report 

 

Conclusion: 

 

In conclusion, the Clerk’s Department has generated a Corporate Services Fee By-Law to 

bring the Town in line with fees charged across Wellington County and neighbouring 

municipalities, and recommends that Council considers the by-law at the next regular council 

meeting. 

 

Appendices: 

 

Fee Comparison Chart 

Proposed By-Law 

 

52



Centre Wellington 

(includes HST            

where applicable)

Guelph Eramosa Mapleton Puslinch
Wellington North (taxes 

extra where applicable)
Orangeville Town of Erin (Current)

Town of Erin 

(Proposed)

Burial Permit Administration
$40.00 (out of town)   

$30.00 (in town)
$20.00

service not provided 

(Minto)

service not 

provided  

$15.00 (outside 

Municipality) $10.00 

(within Municipality)

$25.00 $10.00 $15.00

Certification of True Copy $20.00 $10.00
$20.00                                  

(plus tax)

$10.00              

(plus tax)
$10.00

$10.00 1 page         

$15 multiple
no charge $10.00

Civil Marriage Ceremony                 

(in chambers)
$226.00 $200.00 service not provided  

service not 

provided  
service not provided  $250.00

$250.00 (reg. hours)                   

$350.00 (after hours)

$250.00 (reg. hours)                   

$350.00 (after hours)

Civil Marriage Ceremony                      

(off site)
$395.50

$300.00                   

(plus expenses)
service not provided

service not 

provided
service not provided $300.00 $400.00 $400.00

Commissioner of Oaths $20.00 $10.00

no charge (unless for 

vehicle transfers and 

immunization forms - 

$20.00)

$10.00              

(plus tax)
$25.00

$10.00 (single) 

$15 (multiple) n/c 

Seniors

no charge $10.00

Compliance Letters $80.00 $80.00
$75.00 (septic);  $85.00 

(zoning)
$75.00 $94.00 $40.00 $75.00 $75.00

Council Agendas $300/year $300/year
$200.00                            

(plus tax)

$0.25 per page      

(plus tax)

$0.25 pp (b/w);                  

$1.50 pp (colour)

service not 

provided
no charge $300/year

Dog Licence

$25.00 (Jan-Apr)   

$45.00 (May-Oct)  

$12.50 (Nov-Dec)

$20 (fertile)                                    

$15.00 (spayed/ 

neutered)                

Note: $5.00 (penalty 

after March 31)

$15.00 (1st dog) 

$25.00 (2nd dog) 

$35.00 (3rd dog) 

$45.00 (4th dog) 

$55.00 (5th dog)

$25.00

$15.00 (1st dog)     

$25.00 (2nd dog)     

$35.00 (3rd dog)     

$45.00 (4th dog)     

$55.00 (5th dog)

$25.00 (1st dog)  

$25.00 (2nd dog)  

$50.00 (3rd dog)   

Note: $5.00 

(penalty after Apr 

1)

$20.00 (to Mar.31);             

$30.00 (after Apr.1)

$20.00 (to Mar.31);             

$30.00 (after Apr.1)

Dog Licence(replacement tag) $7.00 $5.00 $10.00 no charge $10.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00

Fence Viewing Request $500.00 $400.00 service not provided $300.00 not applicable not applicable
Actual cost ($250 

deposit)
$400.00

Kennel License $350.00 $125.00 $175.00 $175.00
$150.00 (plus $75.00 

inspection fee)
not applicable

$125.00 (to Mar 31);     

$150.00 (after Apr 1)

$150.00 (to Mar 31); 

$200.00 (after Apr 1)

53



Centre Wellington 

(includes HST            

where applicable)

Guelph Eramosa Mapleton Puslinch
Wellington North (taxes 

extra where applicable)
Orangeville Town of Erin (Current)

Town of Erin 

(Proposed)

Lottery Licence Legislated
3% of estimated total 

value of prizes

3% of estimated total value 

of prizes;          (Break Open 

$5.00/bx)

3% of estimated total 

value of prizes

$20.00 per license;           Break 

open $10.00/bx)

3% of estimated total 

value of prizes

1% of estimated total value 

of prizes ($10 min)

3% of estimated total value of 

prizes ($20 min)

NSF Cheque $45.00 $25.00 $35.00 $40.00 $30.00 $25.00 $25.00 $35.00

Photocopies (per page) $0.55 $0.25
$0.50                               

(plus tax)

$0.25                

(plus tax)

$0.25 pp (b/w);                  

$1.50 pp (colour)
$0.25 no charge $0.30 per page

Tax Arrears Notice $5.00 no charge $5.00 no charge not applicable $25.00 no charge $5.00

Tax Bill - reprint $15.00 no charge $5.00 no charge not applicable no charge no charge $15.00

Tax Certificate $30.00 $30.00 $55.00 $60.00 $50.00 $50.00 $40.00 $40.00

Unpaid Charges added to Tax Roll  

(other than water arrears)
$20.00 no charge $20.00 no charge actual cost no charge no charge $25.00

54



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF ERIN 
 
 

BY-LAW NUMBER 15-  
 
 

 
A by-law to establish fees and charges for various services 

provided by the Corporation of the Town of Erin 

 
 
 

 
WHEREAS Section 391, Part XII of the Municipal Act, 2001 authorizes a municipality to impose 
fees or charges on persons; 
 
AND WHEREAS pursuant to Section 385, Part XI of the Municipal Act, 2001 a municipality may 
fix a scale of costs to be charged as the reasonable costs of proceedings under Part XI, which 
scale shall be designed to meet only the anticipated costs of the municipality; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Erin enacts as follows: 
 
1. That the fees and charges for various municipal services provided are shall be as set out in 

Schedule A, attached hereto and forming part of this By-law. 
 
2. That should any part of this By-law, including any part of the schedule attached hereto be 

determined by a Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or of no force and effect, it is 
the stated intention of Council that such invalid part of the By-law shall be severable and that 
the remainder of this By-law including the remainder of the schedule attached hereto, as 
applicable, shall continue to operate and to be in force and effect. 

 
3. That this By-law shall come into force and take effect on January 1, 2016. 

 
 

Passed in open Council on December 15, 2015. 
 
 
 
 

    ____________________________ 
Mayor 

 
              

    ____________________________ 
Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

55



 
Schedule A  
By-Law 15- 

 
 
 

Type Of Service Fees  

Commissioner of Oaths  

Certification of True Copy $10.00 

Commissioning Signatures on Documents $10.00 

Administering Oaths/Affidavits $10.00 

Paper Copies  

Full year of Council Agendas (annual rate, paid by Jan. 31) $300.00/year 

Single Council Agenda, per page charge $0.30/page 

Per page copy charge for all other documents $0.30/page 

Civil Marriage  

Civil Marriage (council chambers, during office hours) $250.00 

Civil Marriage (council chambers, after hours) $350.00 

Civil Marriage (offsite) $400.00 

Licencing  

Dog Tag (Jan 1 to Mar 31) $20.00 

Dog Tag (Apr 1 to Dec 31) $30.00 

Dog Tag Replacement $5.00 

Kennel Licence (Jan 1 to Mar 31) $150.00 

Kennel Licence (Apr 1 to Dec 31) $200.00 

Lottery Licence 
3% of estimated prize 

value ($20.00 
minimum) 

Taxes  

Tax Certificate $40.00 

Reprint of Tax Bill/Statement $15.00 

Tax Arrears Notice $5.00 

Unpaid Charges added to Tax Roll (other than water arrears) $25.00 

Other  

NSF Cheque  $35.00 

Burial Permit Administration Fee $15.00 

Fence Viewing Request $400.00 

 

56



 

Staff Report 

 

Report #:   2015-11            
 
Date:    December-1-15     
 
Submitted By: Sharon Marshall, Director of Finance 
      
 

Subject: TEMPORARY BORROWING BYLAW 2015  
 
 

 

Recommendations: 

 

Be it resolved that Council receives the Director of Finance’s Report “Temporary Borrowing 

Bylaw 2015” for information;    

 

And that Council considers the adoption of the Borrowing Bylaw as recommended.   

 

 

Background: 

 

Section 407 of the Municipal Act, 2001 allows municipalities to borrow up to 50% of the total 

estimated revenues of the municipality from January 1 to September 30 each year; or 25% of 

the total revenues from October 1 to December 31 each year prior to collection of those 

revenues to meet the expenses of the municipality. To address the occasional cash-flow 

shortfall, the Town is authorized to borrow short-term funds up to $1,500,000.00 from the 

Royal Bank of Canada.   

 

Financial Impact: 

 

The total estimated revenues of the Town based on the “2015 Annual Repayment Limit” 

document (“ARL”) are approximately $8,509,745.  As prescribed under the Municipal Act, the 

Town can borrow up to 50% in the first three quarters of this year, or 25% for the final quarter 

2015, or up to $2,127,436. 

 

The Temporary Borrowing Bylaw with the RBC authorizes up to $1,500,000., well within the 

limits allowed. As a result of positive cash-flow so far in 2015, we have not required any short-

term borrowing this year. 

 

Consultation: 

 

57



 
 

I have reviewed the Municipal Act, the Ministry of Municipal Affairs “ARL”, and the “Credit 

Facilities Agreement” with RBC, as revised November 13, 2013. 

 

Communications Plan: 

 

Upon adoption of the Borrowing Bylaw, a certified copy will be sent to the RBC, Guelph 

Commercial Centre. 

 

Conclusion: 

 

I recommend that Council adopt the temporary borrowing bylaw for 2015 as drafted to 

authorize borrowing from time to time to meet current expenditures. 

 

Appendices: 

 

N/A 

 

58



 

Staff Report 

 

Report #:   2015- 15                
 
Date:    December-1-15     
 
Submitted By: Larry Wheeler / Financial Analyst 
      
 

Subject: Five Year Capital Plan 2016 – 2020, Draft: Dec 1, 2015 
 
 

 

Recommendations: 

 

Be it resolved that the Council of the Town of Erin hereby receives report 2015- 15 ‘Five 

Year Capital Plan 2016 – 2020, Draft: Dec 1, 2015’ as information. 

 

Background: 

 

At the Special Meeting of Nov 23, 2015 Town of Erin Council generally agreed to make 

several alterations to the Capital Plan as presented. 

All changes have been illustrated with a red font. 

In the event that the Capital Plan discussions get put on hold until after the Operational 

Budget process, it seems wise to document the Five Year Capital Plan’s current status.     

 

Financial Impact: 

 

In the General Government section, a few small cuts were agreed to. 

With regard to the Fire Department, two trucks were deferred by one year, and the 

construction phase of the Station 10 expansion was more realistically scheduled for 2017. 

In the Roads Dept, a grader price was adjusted, three vehicles were deferred one year, and 

accord was reached on two sidewalk projects. Additionally, three road construction projects 

were deferred by one year. With regard to bridge and culvert major repairs, rehabilitation, and 

replacement, advice was obtained from Triton Engineering which (abbreviated) was to 

proceed with the replacement of Culvert 2045 (Line 77), but to obtain the advice of a bridge 

rehab / replace firm (i.e. Reeves Construction) in the year preceding the decision on the other 

two potential replacements (Lines 81 & 96). Triton also noted that the AECOM report could be 

used as an indicator for planning purposes, but would not be accurate for budgeting. I have 

highlighted the cells preceding the year of our two rehab / replace decisions and removed the 

cost figure for the rehab. Also, I have delayed major repairs (with one exception) from 2015 

pending the hiring of a Director of Infrastructure. 

59



 
 

In the Recreation Dept, some reserve funding is now available for Ballinafad, and the lawn 

tractor has been deferred beyond year 5. Both Tennis Club projects are now internally funded 

by the club. 

With regard to Economic Development, the crosswalk project was deleted as a consequence 

of the projected loss of six to eight parking spots.  

 

Consultation: 

 

As previously noted, changes to this draft originated at the Special Meeting November 23rd, 

and through staff discussions with Triton Engineering.  

 

Communications Plan: 

 

At this time, there have been no further ‘5 Year Capital Plan’ meetings scheduled.  

 

Conclusion: 

 

Council will now have a choice of proceeding with the objective of completing a five year 

capital plan, or concentrating specifically on a 2016 capital budget. 

  

Appendices: 

 

Dec 1, Draft Five Year Capital Plan (2016 – 2020). 

 

60



http://toe-escribe/Regular Council Meeting_Dec01_2015/eSCRIBE Documents/eSCRIBE Raw Attachments/54/Copy of Capital Plan 2016 - 2020 Draft Dec 1 2015 L Wheeler

Data extracted from the following major studies:

TOWN OF ERIN 1) Development Charges Study 2014 - Watson & Assoc

2016  -  2020   CAPITAL PLAN 2) Asset Management Plan 2013 - Watson & Assoc
3) State of the Infrastructure - Roads 2013 - 4 Roads Mgmt

Master List of Potential Capital Projects 4) Ontario Structures Inspections Summary 2015 - AECOM
5) Operational Review 2015 - Strategy Corp

Orange = project from Asset Management Plan Illustration Only

Red = project from Development Charges Study 2015 Capital

BUDGET Trade-Ins, Reserves, Development New Capital Assessment Property

Project Description 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 TOTAL Grants Donations Reserve Funds Charges Fees Growth Debt Tax

1 GENERAL GOVERNMENT
2 Organization & Compensation Review - Major Study 12,500$            37,500$            37,500$              37,500$          
3 Municipal Offices - Entrance Sign 8,300$              2,500$              2,500$                2,500$             
4 Green Energy Conservation Plan 8,000$              8,000$             8,000$             24,000$              24,000$          
5 Financial Systems Upgrade Project 30,000$            30,000$              30,000$          
6 Records Management & Storage Project 30,000$            70,000$           100,000$           71,627$         28,373$          
7 I.T. Systems 34,560$            36,500$            26,600$           62,300$           30,000$           30,000$           185,400$           185,400$        
8 Municipal Offices - Renovations (CAO) 5,000$              10,000$            240,000$        250,000$           71,000$        179,000$        
9 Municipal Offices - Accessibility renovations only 10,000$           10,000$              10,000$        -$                 

10 Municipal Offices - Paint & carpet 53,000$           53,000$              53,000$          
11 Asset Management Plan Update $0 38,000$           38,000$              1,800$          36,200$          
12 Development Charges Study 25,000$           25,000$              22,500$        2,500$             
13 Telephone System                25,000$            25,000$              10,000$         15,000$          
14 Municipal Offices - HVAC & hot water tank 35,000$           35,000$              35,000$          
15 Municipal Offices - vinyl windows, doors 74,000$           74,000$              74,000$        -$                 
16 General Government - Totals by Year 179,500$       407,600$      108,300$      90,000$        104,000$      889,400$        10,000$        81,627$         24,300$        -$               145,000$      -$                 628,473$        

18 BUILDING DEPT
19 Computer Software 30,000$           30,000$          30,000$         -$                 

21 FIRE & EMERGENCY
22 Custom Pumper Rescue Truck 264,000$       357,000$          357,000$           357,000$        -$                 
23 Radio System upgrade, similar to County's 400MHz 40,000$            40,000$              40,000$          
24 Replace T57 (1990 Intl Tanker) with Pumper / Tanker 264,000$        196,000$        460,000$           460,000$        -$                 
25 Erin Firehall 10 - expansion 20,000$            160,000$        180,000$           100,000$      80,000$          
26 Replace T58 (94 Frtl Tanker) with Pumper / Tanker 264,000$        196,000$        460,000$           105,000$      355,000$        
27 Erin Firehall 10 - apparatus floor Ventilation 85,000$           85,000$              15,910$         69,090$          
28 Pumper/Rescue 4x4 pickup -replace R15(92 GM Van) 122,000$        122,000$           122,000$        
29 Pumper/Rescue 4x4 pickup -replace R55(94 Frtl Van) 125,000$        125,000$           125,000$        
30 Fire Dept - Totals by Year 417,000$       509,000$      460,000$      318,000$      125,000$      1,829,000$     15,910$         100,000$      105,000$      817,000$        791,090$        

32 ROADS
33 ROADS - Software & Major Studies

Draft: Dec 1, 2015

5 YEAR CAPITAL PLAN
SOURCES OF FINANCE

61



http://toe-escribe/Regular Council Meeting_Dec01_2015/eSCRIBE Documents/eSCRIBE Raw Attachments/54/Copy of Capital Plan 2016 - 2020 Draft Dec 1 2015 L Wheeler

Orange = project from Asset Management Plan Illustration Only

Red = project from Development Charges Study 2015 Capital

BUDGET Trade-Ins, Reserves, Development New Capital Assessment Property

Project Description 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 TOTAL Grants Donations Reserve Funds Charges Fees Growth Debt Tax

5 YEAR CAPITAL PLAN
SOURCES OF FINANCE

34 GIS Mapping Programme 35,000$         74,420$           74,420$             33,000$        41,420$          
35

36 ROADS - Equipment
37 Wheel Loader - Case 621D, bucket, forks, 2006 210,000$          210,000$           60,000$        140,000$      10,000$          
38 Trackless - MT Series 5 + various accessories, 2006 148,000$          148,000$           20,000$        70,000$        58,000$          
39 Radio System upgrade, similar to County's 400MHz 40,000$            40,000$              40,000$          
40 Grader - Volvo G740B, 2003, with plow & wing 400,000$        400,000$           25,000$        375,000$        
41 Snow Plough - International Paystar 5500, 2005 285,000$        285,000$           40,000$        245,000$        
42 Excavator - Cat314CR, buckets, ripper, 2005 265,000$        265,000$           60,000$        205,000$        
43 Additional Pick-up 50,000$           50,000$              4,000$          46,000$          
44 Chipper - Brush Bandit 150XP, 2009 50,000$           50,000$              15,000$        35,000$          
45 Tractor - New Holland T6050, snow wing, sander, 2008 100,000$        100,000$           28,000$        72,000$        -$                 
46 Snow Plough - International 7600, 2007 285,000$        285,000$           40,000$        73,000$        172,000$        
47 Snow Plough - International 7600, roll off, sander, 2010 285,000$        285,000$           40,000$        245,000$        
48 Road Equipment - Totals by Year 398,000$          450,000$        700,000$        285,000$        285,000$        2,118,000$        332,000$      140,000$      215,000$      1,431,000$     
49

50 ROADS - Facilities
51 Road's Shop - flat roofing 115,000$        115,000$           115,000$        
52 Hot Mix Sand Shed, Salt Brine Storage (Report Pending) 340,900$        340,900$           20,900$        320,000$        -$                 
53

54 ROADS - Auxiliary Infrastructure
55 Sidewalk build - CR 124, Erin village north, Tim Horton's 250,000$          250,000$           171,000$      79,000$        -$                 
56 Sidewalk build - CR 124, Erin village south, Delarmbro 100,000$        100,000$           73,100$         26,900$          
57 Streetlight Replacement Programme 60,000$           60,000$              60,000$         -$                 
58 Parking Lot Rehabilitation Program -$                    -$                 
59 Sidewalk Rehabilitation Program -$                    -$                 
60

61 ROADS - Road Construction
62 Rural Reconstruct - 17 Sideroad 624,000$       774,988$          774,988$           327,442$      223,773$      223,773$        -$                 
63 Urban Reconstruct - George St, section 01422 267,130$       131,000$          131,000$           59,729$        71,271$          -$                 
64 Urban Reconstruct - Church St 290,000$        290,000$           290,000$        -$                 
65 Urban Reconstruct - Daniel St (Ross to south of Church) 50,000$         50,000$            1,101,100$     1,151,100$        343,035$      15,000$        793,065$        -$                 
66 Pulverize & Resurface - 2nd Line, 350,000$       -$                  197,500$        197,500$           59,729$        137,771$        -$                 
67 Urban Reconstruct - 5th Line (CR22 - Cedar Valley) 137,816$        137,816$           137,816$        -$                 
68 Urban Reconstruct - 5th Line (Cedar Valley - .4km North) 106,864$        106,864$           106,864$        -$                 
69 Rural Reconstruct - 00160 -27 Sideroad (4th - 5th Line) 472,466$        472,466$           343,035$      129,431$        -$                 
70 Pulverize & Resurface - 10000 - Dundas St W 182,287$        182,287$           59,729$        122,558$        -$                 
71 Rural Reconstruct - 00240 - Station St (EC Trail- 6th Line) 302,686$        302,686$           302,686$        -$                 
72 Rural Reconstruct +Surface - 8th Line - (CR 124 - 15SR) 1,347,300$     1,347,300$        343,035$      1,004,265$     -$                 
73 Road Construction - Totals by Year 955,988$          487,500$        1,202,119$     1,101,100$     1,347,300$     5,094,007$        1,535,734$  238,773$      3,319,500$     -$                 

75 ROADS - Bridges & Culverts
76 Station St Rehabilitation, includes Bridge 2064 (E.A.) 145,057$       50,000$            2,442,308$     2,492,308$        327,442$      2,164,866$     -$                 
77 Culvert 2045 - Replace (4th L sth of 17SR)   BCI:55.65 35,000$         628,671$        628,671$           628,671$        -$                 
78 Bridge 1 - Replace (Winston Chch, 1 Lane)  BCI:59.21 700,000$          700,000$           700,000$        -$                 
79 Bridge 2 - Rehab (10th L south of 15SR)      BCI:65.29 70,200$           70,200$              70,200$          -$                 

62



http://toe-escribe/Regular Council Meeting_Dec01_2015/eSCRIBE Documents/eSCRIBE Raw Attachments/54/Copy of Capital Plan 2016 - 2020 Draft Dec 1 2015 L Wheeler

Orange = project from Asset Management Plan Illustration Only

Red = project from Development Charges Study 2015 Capital

BUDGET Trade-Ins, Reserves, Development New Capital Assessment Property

Project Description 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 TOTAL Grants Donations Reserve Funds Charges Fees Growth Debt Tax

5 YEAR CAPITAL PLAN
SOURCES OF FINANCE

80 Bridge 3 - Rehab (1st L south of CR124)      BCI:70.44 129,500$        129,500$           129,500$        -$                 
81 Bridge 5 - Rehab or Replace (2nd L Orton)   BCI:62.74 576,973$        576,973$           576,973$        -$                 
82 Bridge 6 - Rehab (3rd L north of CR124)       BCI:74.47 73,000$           73,000$              73,000$          -$                 
83 Bridge 7 - Rehab or Replace (3rd L Orton)    BCI:68.44 134,000$        134,000$           134,000$        -$                 
84 Bridge 9 - Rehab or Replace (8th L 17SR)    BCI:68.87 139,500$        139,500$           139,500$        -$                 
85 Culvert 10 - Rehab or Replace (17SR, 8L)    BCI:66.53 62,000$           62,000$              62,000$          -$                 
86 Bridge 11 - Rehab (8th L north of 17SR)       BCI:79.48 53,500$           53,500$              53,500$          -$                 
87 Bridge 12 - Rehab (17SR east of 3rd L)        BCI:95.13 56,500$           56,500$              56,500$          -$                 
88 Culvert 13 - Rehab (Dundas west of Main)    BCI:74.72 91,000$           91,000$              91,000$          -$                 
89 Culvert 14 - Rehab (Church west of Main)     BCI:69.11 19,800$           19,800$              19,800$          -$                 
90 Culvert 2011 - Rehab (10th L sth of 15SR)    BCI:73.90 12,000$            12,000$              12,000$          -$                 
91 Culvert 2018 - Rehab (1st L north of WR50)  BCI:63.57 112,000$        112,000$           112,000$        -$                 
92 Culvert 2019 - Rehab (3rd L sth of WR124)   BCI:72.28 120,000$        120,000$           120,000$        -$                 
93 Culvert 2027 - Rehab (HH TL west of 6th L)  BCI:58.02 148,000$        148,000$           148,000$        -$                 
94 Culvert 2033 - Rehab (1st L south of 17SR)  BCI:68.06 58,000$           58,000$              58,000$          -$                 
95 Culvert 2048 - Rehab (5th L Cedar Valley)    BCI:72.36 117,000$        117,000$           117,000$        -$                 
96 Culvert 2051 - Rehab or Replace (8th Line)   BCI:54.61 525,355$        525,355$           525,355$        -$                 
97 Culvert 2052 - Rehab (8th L Garafraxa TL)    BCI:70.33 136,000$        136,000$           136,000$        -$                 
98 Culvert 2053 - Rehab (27SR east of 9th L)    BCI:68.62 119,500$        119,500$           119,500$        -$                 
99 Culvert 2057 - Rehab (17SR east of 1st L)    BCI:62.14 125,000$        125,000$           125,000$        -$                 

100 Culvert 2059 - Rehab (24SR west of 5th L)   BCI:66.85 118,000$        118,000$           118,000$        -$                 
101 Culvert 2060 - Rehab (24SR Cedar Valley)   BCI:68.34 143,000$        143,000$           143,000$        -$                 
102 Culvert 2066 - Rehab (East Gara TL 8th L)   BCI:69.72 48,500$           48,500$              48,500$          -$                 
103 Culvert 2068 - Rehab (East Gara TL 1st L)   BCI:68.50 118,000$        118,000$           118,000$        -$                 
104 Culvert 2072 - Rehab (East Gara TL Orton)   BCI:69.68 81,000$           81,000$              81,000$          -$                 
105 Bridges & Culverts - Totals by Year 762,000$          3,409,308$     1,085,171$     575,500$        1,376,328$     7,208,307$        327,442$      6,880,865$     -$                 
106

107 ROADS DEPT- Totals by Year 2,365,988$   4,406,808$  3,161,710$  2,302,500$  3,123,628$  15,360,634$   1,863,176$  332,000$      444,100$      371,673$      215,000$      10,520,365$  1,614,320$     

109 ENVIRONMENTAL
110 Prepare Terms of Reference - Drinking Water EA 52,800$         -$                    -$                 
111 Prepare Terms of Reference - Waste Water EA 35,500$         -$                    -$                 
112 SSMP Environmental Assess. - Drinking Water 202,290$       202,290$          202,290$           120,000$      82,290$        -$                 
113 SSMP Environmental Assess. - Waste Water 200,000$       200,000$          200,000$        400,000$           175,000$      25,000$        200,000$        
114 Environmental - Totals by Year 402,290$          200,000$        -$                 -$                 -$                 602,290$        175,000$      120,000$      107,290$      200,000$        

116 RECREATION
117 Hillsburgh Community Centre
118 Evaporative Condenser 48,500$            48,500$              48,500$          
119 Millwork - Lobby & concessions 10,600$            10,600$              6,000$           4,600$             
120 Paint exterior cladding 11,500$            11,500$              11,500$          
121 Accessibility renovations 11,200$            11,200$           22,400$              20,000$        2,400$             

63



http://toe-escribe/Regular Council Meeting_Dec01_2015/eSCRIBE Documents/eSCRIBE Raw Attachments/54/Copy of Capital Plan 2016 - 2020 Draft Dec 1 2015 L Wheeler

Orange = project from Asset Management Plan Illustration Only

Red = project from Development Charges Study 2015 Capital

BUDGET Trade-Ins, Reserves, Development New Capital Assessment Property

Project Description 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 TOTAL Grants Donations Reserve Funds Charges Fees Growth Debt Tax

5 YEAR CAPITAL PLAN
SOURCES OF FINANCE

122 Olympia - ice resurfacer 87,000$           87,000$              87,000$          
123 Lighting 19,000$           19,000$              19,000$          
124 Score clock replacement 13,000$           13,000$              13,000$          
125 Hillsburgh Community Centre - Totals by Year 81,800$            11,200$           87,000$           19,000$           13,000$           212,000$           20,000$        6,000$           186,000$        
126

127 Erin Community Centre
128 Paint exterior & interior cladding 10,400$            10,400$              10,400$          
129 Hall - Chairs 15,600$            15,600$              15,600$          
130 HVAC - rooftop units 19,000$           19,000$              19,000$          
131 Compressor and 50 HP motor, no control panel 56,000$           56,000$              56,000$          
132 Brine pump and motor 18,000$           18,000$              18,000$          
133 Accessibility renovations 10,000$           10,000$              10,000$        -$                 
134 Flat roofing - original Community Centre 60,000$           60,000$              60,000$          
135 Floor scrubbers (1x ride, 1x push) 13,000$           13,000$              13,000$          
136 Arena floor slab, refrigeration piping 850,000$        850,000$           75,000$        775,000$        -$                 
137 Erin Community Centre - Totals by Year 26,000$            75,000$           28,000$           73,000$           850,000$        1,052,000$        10,000$        75,000$        775,000$        192,000$        
138

139 Centre 2000
140 Centre 2000 Sewage Agreement 20,000$            20,000$           20,000$           20,000$           80,000$              80,000$          
141 Theatre - Replace roof 120,000$          120,000$           60,000$        60,000$          
142

143 Outdoor Recreation Fields
144 Playground equipment program 160,000$          10,000$           10,000$           10,000$           10,000$           200,000$           50,000$        150,000$        
145 Barbour Field - upgrade septic system 95,000$            95,000$              95,000$          
146 Pickup Truck - 3/4 ton, 4x4 59,000$            59,000$              5,000$          54,000$          
147 Parks and Recreation Master Plan 55,000$           55,000$              55,000$          
148 Sports Bleachers program 11,000$           11,000$           11,000$           33,000$              33,000$          
149 Rehabilitate garage - Victoria Park 25,000$           25,000$              25,000$          
150 Tractor compact - with loader & mower 24,750$           24,750$              24,750$          
151 Tractor sub-compact - with loader & mower 18,350$           18,350$              18,350$          
152 Sports Fencing program 27,000$           27,000$              27,000$          
153 Outdoor Recreation Fields - Totals by Year 314,000$          125,750$        39,350$           37,000$           21,000$           537,100$           50,000$        5,000$          482,100$        
154

155 Ballinafad Community Centre
156 Furnaces x 2 15,500$           15,500$              5,150$           10,350$          
157 Air conditioning 9,500$             9,500$                3,200$           6,300$             
158 Replace lawn tractor and mower -$                 -$                    -$                 
159

160 Tennis
161 Pergola - shade structure 10,000$           10,000$              10,000$        -$                 
162 Court lighting 10,000$           10,000$              10,000$        -$                 
163

164 RECREATION DEPT- Totals by Year 561,800$          321,950$        174,350$        149,000$        894,000$        2,101,100$     80,000$        85,000$        14,350$         -$               75,000$        -$               775,000$        1,071,750$     

166 PLANNING
167 Official Plan update 18,000$            18,000$              8,100$          9,900$             
168 Zoning By-law update 18,000$            18,000$              8,100$          9,900$             

64



http://toe-escribe/Regular Council Meeting_Dec01_2015/eSCRIBE Documents/eSCRIBE Raw Attachments/54/Copy of Capital Plan 2016 - 2020 Draft Dec 1 2015 L Wheeler

Orange = project from Asset Management Plan Illustration Only

Red = project from Development Charges Study 2015 Capital

BUDGET Trade-Ins, Reserves, Development New Capital Assessment Property

Project Description 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 TOTAL Grants Donations Reserve Funds Charges Fees Growth Debt Tax

5 YEAR CAPITAL PLAN
SOURCES OF FINANCE

169 Traffic Study 25,000$           25,000$              10,000$        15,000$          
170 Planning - Totals by Year 36,000$            25,000$           -$                 -$                 -$                 61,000$          -$               -$               -$               26,200$        -$               -$               -$                 34,800$          

172 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
173 Walking Trail 20,000$            40,000$           40,000$           100,000$           50,000$        50,000$          
174 Erin Rotary River Walk 66,300$            250,000$        250,000$        250,000$        816,300$           816,300$      -$                 
175 Crosswalk - Village of Erin (Loss of 6 - 8 parking spots) -$                 -$                    -$                 
176 Development of Equine Trail Hub 210,000$        210,000$           105,000$      105,000$        
177 Economic Development - Totals by Year 86,300$            290,000$        500,000$        250,000$        -$                 1,126,300$     971,300$      155,000$        

179 GRAND TOTAL   > 4,048,878$     6,160,358$    4,434,360$    3,109,500$    4,246,628$    21,999,724$    3,099,476$ 417,000$     705,987$     629,463$     180,000$     360,000$     12,112,365$ 4,495,433$   

181 Average per Annum
182 Total Capital Budget for 2015  > > 3,757,637$      3,757,637$    
183 Total for 2016 - 2020  > > 21,999,724$    4,399,945$    

65



 

Staff Report 

 

Report #:   2015-12            
 
Date:    December-1-15     
 
Submitted By: Sharon Marshall, Director of Finance 
      
 

Subject: APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS- REVISED PROCESS  
 
 

 

Recommendations: 

 

Be it resolved that Council receives the Director’s Report on “Approval of Accounts- Revised 

Process” for information; 

 

And That Council supports the Director’s recommendations. 

 

And finally that the Clerk is directed to amend the Procedural By-law to reflect the changes 

to the “Accounts” procedure for the next regular meeting. 

 

Background: 

 

The procedures for authorizing and approving the payments of “accounts” at the Council table 

follows a long-established process. In 2005 these standard procedures were formalized with 

the adoption of the Procurement By-law #05-58.  Section 17.8 of that By-law details the 

standard procedures for the receipt, processing, and payment of invoices.  Under sections 

17.5 to 17.7, the authorization of accounts is clearly identified as the responsibility of the 

Department Heads.    

 

Councillor Sammut has expressed his concerns with respect to our process, particularly with 

the level of scrutiny that may be implied by Council’s adoption of a resolution to “approve” the 

accounts. Although I suggest that our procedure whereby the actual invoices are presented at 

each Council meeting, and approved for payment by Resolution, is the most accountable and 

most transparent of all methods, I recognize that other processes are also acceptable. 

 

I have drafted a new “Report” to be completed by the Deputy Treasurer and submitted to 

Council under the “Report” section of the regular meetings Agenda.  The Deputy Treasurer 

will continue to process the accounts payables as outlined in the Procurement By-law.  She 

will continue to review each invoice to assure that the department head, or his designate, has 

initialed each to authorize payment, and that the account coding is appropriate. The Deputy 

66



 
 

Treasurer’s Report will specify the payable amounts.  Council will be asked to pass a 

Resolution simply “receiving” the Deputy Treasurer’s Report regarding Approval of 

Accounts.  

 

Financial Impact: 

 

N/A 

 

Consultation: 

 

In response to a request from a Councillor, I reviewed the Town’s Procurement By-law #05-

58.  I also surveyed the procedures used in the other 6 municipalities in Wellington County. 

 

Results: Of the responses, all municipalities follow ‘similar’ processes within a range of 

Council involvement including: Council ‘approval’ by Resolution and staff report; no Council 

resolution; staff report with recommendation to pay accounts as listed and Council motion to 

‘receive’ report. 

  

Communications Plan: 

 

Agendas will include a staff Report listing cheques and disbursement totals along with a 

recommendation to pay accounts.  

 

Conclusion: 

 

Department Heads will continue to be responsible for the authorization of accounts within the 

Budget limits and following the requirements of the Procurement By-law. Commencing with 

the payment of the accounts on December 1st, Council will be asked to consider a Resolution 

to receive the Deputy Treasurer’s Report whereby she lists each cheque disbursement listing 

and recommends payment.  

 

Appendices: 

 

Deputy Treasurer’s “Approval of Accounts” Report - DRAFT  

 

67



 

 

                                            Staff Report 

 
Report #:                2015-12A DRAFT ONLY 

 

Date:                      December 1, 2015 

 

Submitted By:       Gail Broadfield, Deputy Treasurer 

 

Subject:                 Approval of Accounts 

 

 

Recommendations: 

 

Be it resolved that Council receives the Deputy Treasurer’s Report  #2015-12A on “Approval of 

Accounts”. 

 

Background: 

 

Invoices in the amounts listed below have been authorized for payment by Department Heads, or 

their designates, and entered for payment as follows: 

 

Cheque Listing                    #1040   $  57,251.61                                         

 

Manual Cheque Listing       # 

 

Online Internet Payments    #1038   $  601.50 

                                             #1039   $  3,440.57 

 

Total                                                  $  61,293.68 

 

Conclusion: 

 

The accounts, as listed, will be paid as submitted. 

 

Appendices: 

 

N/A 

 

68



69



70



71



72



73



 
 
 

Let’s Get Hillsburgh Growing Committee 
Meeting  

Thursday October 15, 2015 
 
Members Present: Jackie Turbitt, Lloyd Turbitt, Jeff Duncan, Ruth Maddock, Grace Lush (via 
internet) 
Regrets: Elizabeth MacInnis, Liz Ewasick, Donna Revell. 
Guest: Raissa Sauve 
 
1) Minutes:  

Motion: 1-10-2015: LGHG Minutes 
Moved by Grace and seconded by Jackie: That the minutes of the LGHG Committee meeting of 
September 17th, 2015 be adopted as circulated. Carried 
 

2) Accounts 
Motion: 2-10-2015: Accounts 
Moved by Grace and seconded by Ruth: That accounts in the amount of $664.79 (list attached) be 
paid. Carried. 
These are Advertising and games for Fun Day, miscellaneous expenses and costs for posts etc. for 
the new Entrance Signs. Jackie will check with Sharon to make sure MacKinnon’s bill is not paid 
twice as they have already submitted the bill to the Town’s General Account. 
 

3) Donation from the Firefighters. 
We received a cheque from the Hillsburgh Firefighters Association of $250.00 to be used for the new 
Entrance 
Signs. Jackie will send a thank you 

 

4) Fall Decorating Kits  

There were 54 kits sold this year. We haven’t yet received an invoice for the cornstalks, and will wait 

to see if John is going to send one. We’re pleased with this project and hope to not only continue 

with it, but perhaps expand sales. 

We’ll have to remember we may be looking at different storage areas and venues next year. 

 

5) Scarecrow Contest 

Posters have been put up, and though there are lots of homes with decorations, not many have 

phoned to be entered in the contest. We’ll look at better advertising next year. We agreed to have a 

third category via an email vote to have a “group” category where more than one family help put up 

the display. 

 

 

 

74



 

 

 

6) New Hillsburgh Signs 

Lloyd, Jeff and Scott Rae installed the two new signs. Lloyd will arrange for the photo op with the 

Mayor and Martin Rudd, with him and Jackie representing LGHG. The south end was wet and 

needed special cement. Comments from the public have all been very positive. Thanks to the Town 

staff who cleaned up the areas surrounding the signs. 

 

Lloyd got a quote from Mr. Lasko about doing the signs for the service clubs. The estimate was 

noticeably higher than the reduction in our costs when we asked to have those signs removed from 

a sample before we chose the final design and seemed to be too high for the clubs to proceed with. 

 

 Jeff liked a sign in Orangeville, with the service clubs on a wire frame. We’ll ask which clubs would 

like to participate by supplying two new signs of approximately the same size, with our group co-

ordinating and putting the actual signs up for them. Possible groups could be the Hillsburgh Lions, 

the Optimists, the Rotary, Erin Fair Board, the Legion and LGHG. 

Action needed:  Jackie & Lloyd will draft a letter to be sent to the service groups in the community 

offering them the opportunity to have their sign placed on the new entrance signs and advising 

them of our requirements regarding their signs. 

 

7) Historical banners on the Tack Shop & the Arena 

These banners are very badly faded.  The committee will consider replacing them at a future date. 

Action needed: Despite several attempts, Jeff hasn’t yet been able to contact the owner of the Tack 

Shop requesting that the banner be taken down. 

Action needed: Terry at the Arena will have the remaining signs removed. We’ll ask him to roll them 

up and see if it’s feasible to auction them next year at Spirit of the Hills, depending on their 

condition. 

 

8) Historical Park 

Plant inventory: Heidi Duncan has created a list of the plants in the park. 

Action needed: A meeting with Heidi to review the plant list and discuss an action plan for the 

park`s gardens. 

 

Wooden structure in the park: Discussion occurred about repairs to the structure. Raissa raised the 

question of possible grants from United Way for Health and Safety repairs.  

Action needed:  Lloyd talked informally with some of the Hillsburgh Lions Club but didn’t invite 

them to a meeting yet. They will need time to discuss this themselves before they talk with us. Lloyd 

will ask them if they’ve considered asking for the grant money mentioned above. 

 

 

 

75



 

 

 

9) Canada Day 2017 – Town of Erin Canada Day Committee 

The steering committee for this celebration has yet to be set, but Lloyd was told there was no need 

to formally respond to the information letter sent.  

 

10) Metal laser-cut signs: 

Lloyd took one of the yellow signs to Steve Robson at Brodie Ltd. Steve was not surprised that the 

paint was failing      and hadn’t expected it to last much more than five or so years. He did offer to 

look at the possibility of having the ones needing repainting sanded down by machine and then 

repainted. No time line was offered. 

Lloyd and Jeff suggested that we spray them ourselves with Tremclad paint. We would budget to 

replace perhaps ten a year. 

In the future we may wish to order just the unpainted signs and paint them ourselves as well. 

11) Other Business & Round Table  

A) Garbage containers: 

Since these containers are not being used as intended and always seem to be full to 

overflowing, we’ll move the one left on the street across to the Parkette, as a trial anyway. Lloyd 

and Jeff will move it. 

 

B) LGHG members:  

Jeff assured us that we are on the committee for the term of Council and members can be 

added or retire at any time during that period.  Donna Muir has retired from the Committee and 

Raissa wishes to join us. 

 Motion: 3-10-2015 Change in LGHG Committee 

Moved by Ruth, seconded by Jackie: that Raissa Sauve be added to the LGHG committee and 

Donna Muir’s name be removed. 

Action needed: Jackie to send notice of this motion to the Town Clerk. 

We’re very, very pleased to have Raissa join us. 

 

C) Publicity for LGHG 

Raissa suggested we use social media more than we have been and that a Facebook page would 

be a good way of notifying people of our activities. She volunteered to set one up for us. She 

also asked if we could have a good supply of our brochures available so they could be handed 

out at events such as the Decorating Kits, or door to door, any time we’re in contact with the 

public. She was given one of our brochures with a copy of the logo. 

 

 

76



 

 

 

Action needed: Jackie will find out from Donna how many are in hand, where they are and get 

some to Raissa. Lloyd thinks he has a copy of the logo and will send it to her by email. 

      D)   Budget 

Jeff told us we need to have our budget submitted as soon as possible, so our next meeting will 

be primarily for the budget. Some possible programs suggested: new benches, replacing the 

banners on the arena, seasonal decorations to replace the present wreaths (something that can 

be left up for some months in the winter), solar lights on the new Welcome signs, paying 

someone to keep the downtown area tidy (weeding, litter etc.) for 5 or 6 months, repainting of 

the metal signs, planting in the parkette, repair of the centre structure in the parkette, printing 

of flyers(Jeff will get cost estimate). We’ll need to research the cost of each suggestion and also 

ways to raise the funds. 

Action needed: Jackie to have a trial balance for everyone. All members to be prepared to 

discuss the budget items. 

D) Tree lighting 

We need to find out the date for the Santa visit and tree lighting in the parkette.  

 

Thursday October 29 the TEHC is holding a WWI presentation. At 6:30, people are invited to 

bring and share memorabilia from that time period. At 7:30pm, Phil Gravelle will give a short 

presentation about what life was like in Erin during WWI. 

 

Next Meeting: 
Thursday November 19th 

7pm 
Town of Erin Municipal Office 

5684 Trafalgar Rd. 
 

   

 

 

 

   

77



Page 1 of 3

Description of Request Person Responsible
Date 

Directed
Suggested 
Completion Status

Fill By-law CAO 2014 19-May-15 70%

Set dates for Special Meetings - strategic initiatives Council 3-Feb-15 ongoing as scheduled

Centre 2000 Shared Use Agreement CAO 31-Dec-15

Alcohol Risk Policy - update CAO/Facility Manager 19-May-15 2016

Mayor and Reeves Wall of Recognition TEHC 2-Jun-15 2016 75%

Station 50 - Update Emergency Plan Fire Chief/County Emergency 
Manager 2-Jun-15 Q4

Wastewater EA Terms of Reference Triton Engineering 2-Jun-15 Fall 2015 LOI sent

GMF Application for wastewater class EA feasibility 
study - submission and results Triton Engineering 2-Jun-15 n/a

50% 
(application 
submitted)

Determine the best option for updating the Official Plan Council 13-Jul-15 Fall 2015

Outstanding Operational Review Item - Fire 
Department Review CAO 1-Sep-15 Q4

Organizational and Compensation Review CAO Q4 consultant 
selected

Operational Plan - Finalizing 4 year objectives CAO Q1 2016

Report on actions/options required to implement a 
Community Safety Zone By-law

New Director of 
Operations/County 1-Sep-15 Q1 2016

Quarterly Major Project Updates CAO 1-Sep-15 Each Quarter

Research on status of field inspections -examination of 
dams

Emergency Manager - Linda 
Dickson 16-Jun-15

awaiting 
response from 

Ministry

List of types of desired businesses New EDO 15-Sep-15

Stanley Park Arch and Gates - formal designation TEHC 20-Jan-15 31-Dec-15

Full time By-law Officer Report CBO 6-Oct-15 Jan 2016

Circulate County BMA study Director of Finance 20-Oct-15 when available

Review possible user options for old public school 
property New EDO 20-Oct-15

Report - 5 year on range of possible tax implications - 
increase based on CPI and current AMP Director of Finance 3-Nov-15 Jan 2016

Schedule meeting to review strategies to address 
current economic challenges EDO 3-Nov-15

Report on potential amendments to the sign by-law By-law 17-Nov-15 Q1 2016

Activity List 2015

Open Items

78



Page 2 of 3

Description of Request Person Responsible
Date 

Directed
Suggested 
Completion Status

Activity List 2015

Report on cost and practicality of implementing a ban 
on the sale of bottled water in Town owned Facilities Facilities Manager 16-Dec-14 3-Feb-15 100%

Economic Development Committee Economic Development 
Coordinator 16-Dec-14 3-Feb 100%

Establish Ad Hoc Committee - Grant Requests Director of Finance/CAO 3-Feb-15 17-Feb 100%

Report - Procedural By-law changes Clerk 3-Feb-15 3-Mar 100%

Provide comments to Halton Region regarding 4th Line 
Well Field Explansion by March 9 Water Superintendent 17-Feb-15 9-Mar 100%

Provide comments to the Ministry of Transportation, 
Ontario Good Roads Association and Association of 
Municipalities of Ontario opposing any amendment to 
default speed limits.

Roads Superintendent 17-Feb-15 27-Feb 100%

Integrity Commissioner - implications of rescinding 
Code of Ethics CAO/Integrity Commissioner 3-Feb-15 7-Apr-15 100%

Celebrate Erin Committee 16-Dec-14 18-Apr-15 100%

Procedural By-law change Clerk 21-Apr-15 5-May-15 100%

Ice Storm Assistance Grant Agreement By-law Clerk 21-Apr-15 5-May-15 100%

Report on Waterford Drive with recommendations Road Superintendent 21-Apr-15 5-May-15 100%

Victoria Park - Concession booth work/rent Facilities Manager 7-Apr-15 19-May-15 100%

Operational Review Report to Council Consultant 23-Jun-15 100%

Glendevon Reservoir - Report - Update on status and 
cost of repairs Interim Water Superintendent 2-Jun-15 16-Jun 100%

Sideroad 10 unopened road allowance - possible 
closure of portion CAO 20-Jan-15 n/a 100%

Stanley Park Arch - ownership CAO/Heritage Committee 20-Jan-15 31-Dec-15 100%

Technical Meeting to discuss issues related to how the 
land use planning and EA should proceed Triton Engineering 13-Jul-15 22-Sep-15 100%

Community Support Policy and Application - Report Director of Finance n/a 20-Oct 100%

Report on flying sports flags Clerk 6-Oct-15 20-Oct 100%

Solar - Leasing option report Financial Analyst 6-Oct-15 20-Oct 100%

Completed Items

79



Page 3 of 3

Description of Request Person Responsible
Date 

Directed
Suggested 
Completion Status

Activity List 2015

Review property options with Suncor New EDO 15-Sep-15
business 

operating at 
location

n/a

Delivery of Final Momentum:Town of Erin 2015-2018 
Economic Development Action Plan to Council

Economic Development 
Coordinator 1-Dec-14 3-Nov 100%

Planning Report - 63A Trafalgar/TEHC Resolution Planning Department 6-Oct-15 3-Nov 100%

Review of Committees of Council CAO/Economic Development 
Coordinator 3-Feb-15 31-Dec-15 100%

Operational Review Recommendations - 
Implementation Plan CAO June Fall 2015 100%

80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



Hello Allan and Pierre: 
As per discussions at the November 17, 2015 Council Meeting with respect to two 
issues involving County Roads just outside of the urban sections under control of the 
Town of Erin please use this letter to undertake discussions with the County on the two 
matters below. 
 
1a)  The need to install several steep grade notice signs on the southbound lane of 
Trafalgar Road at the north end of the village of Hillsburgh.  None currently exist (I 
believe years ago signs where in place).  The steep hill into Hillsburgh comes up on 
drivers driving southbound very quickly due to the flat topography just before this major 
hill.  The concern is especially with large trucks and being a gravel haul route this 
request I believe is warranted.    
 
1b)  A permanent speed activated lighted sign (flashes you your speed) would be very 
beneficial as well on the southbound lane of Trafalgar Road as you are in the middle of 
the hill coming into the village Hillsburgh.  In this area on the hill there are numerous 
east-west local side streets that intersect with Trafalgar Road.  Similar activated speed 
signs have been in place for years in the community of Stewatrtown on Trafalgar Road 
(Halton Hills, Region of Halton) on the large hill in that Community 20 minutes south of 
HiIllsburgh.  Activated speed signs are not needed I feel driving northbound into 
Hillsburgh because of the signalized intersection at Trafalgar Road and County Road 22 
slows people down sufficiently enough as compared to driving southbound down the hill 
after a long flat area of 80km roadway. This being within the "urban boundary" area of 
Hillsburgh may need to be a shared cost with the Town. 
 
2)  The need to review the speed limit in the area east of the intersection of County 
Road 124 and Erin Park Drive (this is a "T" intersection at the north end of the village of 
Erin just after going around the large curve leaving the village).  The speed limit at this 
intersection is 80km  but changes to 50km just west of the intersection.  The "ask" is, 
can the 50km speed limit be extended to a safe area EAST of the intersection? This 
area is a acceleration area for cars leaving Erin (driving eastbound) and still a 80km 
zone for cars entering Erin (driving westbound).  The issue raised to me by local 
business owners and residents is that in this area the cars are legally going to fast to 
exit the intersection in a safe manner and it is difficult to enter CR 124 from Erin Park 
Dive in a safe manner.  It is the first intersection within the "urban" area of Erin but the 
speed limit is 80km.  This intersection is a delivery route for all manner of truck traffic 
because this is one of two main intersections with the heavy industrial park area of the 
community.  In addition a large sized car and laundry mat is located at this intersection 
creating a lot of local traffic as well.  In driving over to a business in this area yesterday 
to discuss this issue I personally witnessed a propane cylinder delivery truck almost not 
make the turn at this intersection due to travelling at 80km and coming onto the 
intersection area to quickly. 
 
These are concerns communicated to me by local businesses and residents and your 
attention to these inquiries/requests would be appreciated. 
 
Regards, 
 
Jeff R. Duncan  C.P.T. 
Councillor, Town of Erin 

 

90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



 

Pg 1 | 3 

GENERAL MEMBERSHIP MEETING MINUTES 

July 23, 2015 – 9:00 a.m to 10:15 a.m. 

Tintagels, 50 Main Street, Erin 

ATTENDEES: Chris Bailey, Chair 

Brighten Up 

Stephanie Conway 

EWCS 

Audrey Devonshire 

Tintagels/Minervas 

 Pam Fanjoy 

Friendly Chef/Mill Run 

Eatery 

Dawn Kivell 

TD Bank 

Rob Smith 

Town of Erin 

 Mary Venneman 

BIA Administrative 

Assistant 

  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Motion to approve minutes by D. Kivell, seconded by S. Conway.  Motion passed. 

BIA PROMOTIONS & EVENTS 

ALLIANCES (opportunities for cross-marketing and BIA exposure) 

Canada Day Celebration – Debrief 

• There were a number of people around Town for the event, although a lot of businesses were closed.  

• Some BIA members sponsored the event.  

• If the event continues, it would be good to capitalize on the opportunity and have more businesses open to 

encourage visitors into the downtown 

PanAm Games – Debrief 

• No visible increase in sales from PanAm Games 

Feast of Hops: Sunday, Sept. 20 – Agricultural Centre – 2 pm to 5 pm 

Local artisanal beers, supplemented with local food samples and a silent auction, organized by the Rotary Club 

Erin Studio Tour: Saturday-Sunday, Sept. 19 & 20 – various locations 

 Saturday-Sunday, Sept. 26 & 27 – various locations 

Local artisans’ tour (some in the Village of Erin), organized by Hills of Erin Studio Tour 

• First weekend coincides with Feast of Hops 

o live music on Main Street 

o sidewalk sale 

• Second weekend coincides with the Business Showcase 

106



Village of Erin BIA Meeting Minutes  |  23 July 2015 

Pg 2 | 3 

• Merchants to offer art-inspired activities to complement Erin Studio Tour 

• Sale of take-out lunch packages for art tour visitors 

Action: Marketing opportunity to attract art visitors through art-inspired activities ALL 

 Interest in having take-out lunches available in your store ALL 

 Notify Chris Bailey at villageoferin@gmail.com by August 31 

Business Showcase: Saturday, Sept. 26 – Erin Agricultural Building 

Local business fair promoting shop local 

Tour of Treasures: Wednesday, July 29 
• A tour of merchants that in previous years has included BIA businesses 

• Prior years have been approached to be involved but not approached this year 

Action: Investigate with Tour of Treasures organizer C. Bailey 

ADVERTISING 

In the Hills Advertising 

Action: TWO IN THE HILLS ADVERTISING SPOTS AVAILABLE ($95 per month for remainder of year) ALL 

 Contact Shelley Foord at info@decorsolutions.ca ASAP 

WEBSITE 

Nothing new to report. 

OTHER BUSINESS 

Economic Development 

• Bob Cheetham conducted 4 economic development focus groups the week of July 13-17, focusing on 

equine/local food, downtown revitalization, business attraction and tourism. 

o Concern expressed about the short notice and not all members contacted 

o Disappointing that no BIA members were able to participate under the circumstances 

• A draft economic development plan will be available for public comment in mid-August 

o Focus is the Town of Erin, not exclusively the BIA 

o Some key elements proposed: 

� First Impressions exchange with Mount Forest 

� Increased collaborative marketing (more leverage) 

� Shop local campaign 

� Open for Business campaign focused on hours of opening 

� Build a “river walk” along both sides of the west branch of the Credit River, in three stages.  First step 

will be to apply for funding for a feasibility study. 

� B&B start-up workshop 

� Conduct a retail BR+E (business retention + expansion) 

� St. Patrick’s Day festival – Town of Erin event, potentially partner with Heritage Committee 

107



Village of Erin BIA Meeting Minutes  |  23 July 2015 

Pg 3 | 3 

� Street lighting upgrades 

� Community Improvement Plan (CIP) review (requirements, eligibility and funding for improvements, 

e.g., façade upgrades) 

Council Update 

Nothing to report. 

Ongoing 

Action: Add/update your business on the Town of Erin Business Directory ALL 

 Link > Town of Erin Business Directory ASAP 

Action: Add/update job openings and accommodation on Live and Work in Erin website ALL 

 Create account to add listings (http://liveandworkerin.com)  ASAP 

Happy Moments 

• The TD Breast Cancer basketball tournament fundraiser was a big success 

• EWCS raised $32,000 from this year’s golf tournament 

NEXT MEETING: September 3 at Tintagels, 9 00 a.m. 

108



 

Pg 1 | 4 

G E N E R A L  M E M B E R S H I P  M E E T I N G  M I N U T E S  

September 3, 2015 – 9:00 a.m. to 10:15 a.m. 

Bistro Riviere, 82 Main Street, Erin 

ATTENDEES: Chris Bailey, Chair 

Brighten Up 

Ellen Belfgen McKay 

Weathervane 

Stephanie Conway 

EWCS 

 Pam Fanjoy 

Friendly Chef/Mill Run Eatery 

Shelley Foord 

Décor Solutions 

Dawn Kivell 

TD Bank 

 Thortin Macdonald 

Bistro Riviere 

Rob Smith 

Council Rep, Town of Erin 

Mary Venneman 

BIA Administrative Assistant 

GUESTS: Matt Sammut 

Councilor, Town of Erin 

Jeff Duncan 

Councilor, Town of Erin 

 

Approval of Minutes 

Motion to approve minutes by D. Kivell, seconded by R. Smith.  Motion passed. 

M A R K E T I N G  

Events 

Feast of Hops: Sunday, Sept. 20 – Agricultural Centre – 2 pm to 5 pm 

Local artisanal beers, supplemented with local food samples and a silent auction, organized by the Rotary Club 

• Cost is $30 for beer tasting and food.  Goal is to sell 300 tickets; 70 sold to date.  Friendly Chef and Mill Run 

Eatery promotion:  free coffee to anyone who buys a ticket. 

Action: Encourage customers to buy tickets BY: all 

Tickets for sale at the Friendly Chef and Mill Run Eatery DUE: asap 

Erin Studio Tour Saturday-Sunday, Sept. 19 & 20 – various locations 

 Saturday-Sunday, Sept. 26 & 27 – various locations 

Local artisans’ tour organized by Hills of Erin Studio Tour.  Five artists will be situated downtown. 

• Coincides with Feast of Hops on Sunday, September 20 

• Coincides with Sidewalk Sale on Saturday, September 19, with live music on Main Street 

• Merchants to offer art-inspired activities to complement Erin Studio Tour 

• Sale of take-out lunch packages for art tour visitors at the Friendly Chef 

Action: Marketing opportunity to attract art visitors through art-inspired activities BY: all 

Notify Chris Bailey at villageoferin@gmail.com DUE: Sept 18 

  

109



Village of Erin BIA Meeting Minutes  |  03 September 2015 

Pg 2222 | 3 

Erin Fall Fair Saturday-Monday, Oct. 10-12 – Erin Fair Grounds 

BIA partnering with Erin Agricultural Society and Headwaters Tourism to host the Welcome Booth at the entrance gate. 

• Welcome Booth popular with out-of-town visitors 

� 1000 gift bags to be handed out.  Opportunity for exposure but looking for something more than just an 

advertisement. 

• Fall Fair 50/50 tickets 

� Opportunity to advertise business.  $200 will be given to the merchant whose business name is marked on 

the winning ticket. 

Action: Write store name on batch of 50/50 tickets BY: all 

Tickets available from Chris Bailey at Brighten Up or email to villageoferin@gmail.com DUE: Sept 30 

• Coupons 

� Last year included a coupon sheet in the gift bag.  Limited success; coupon shopping not as popular.  This 

year will use the bag itself as the coupon.  Participating merchants requested to track postal code for 

visitor origin analysis. 

Action: Details of “bag coupon” promotion, distribute for comment BY: C. Bailey

  DUE: Sept 25 

Action: Participation in the “bag coupon” promotion BY: all 

Contact Chris Bailey at villageoferin@gmail.com DUE: Sept 30 

Action: Participate in pre-Fair Window Competition BY: all 

Tickets available from Chris Bailey at Brighten Up or email to villageoferin@gmail.com DUE: Sept 27 

Window Wonderland Friday, Nov. 13 – downtown Erin Village 

To be discussed at the next meeting. 

Christmas Parade Saturday, Nov. 28 – Main Street 

In discussion with Dawn of Erin Lion’s club to shift parade to later in the afternoon to reduce the impact on prime 

shopping hours.   

• BIA may enter float. 

Action: Volunteers to design float BY: all 

Contact Chris Bailey at villageoferin@gmail.com DUE: Oct 30 

Business Showcase Postponed 

New date TBD 

Promotion 

In the Hills Advertising 

Next issue published September 9th.  Final issue published in November. 

Action: In The Hills advertising spots ($95 per month) BY: all 

Contact Shelley Foord at info@decorsolutions.ca DUE: asap 

110



Village of Erin BIA Meeting Minutes  |  03 September 2015 

Pg 3333 | 3 

Country Routes 

Currently all spots are full. Email villageoferin@gmail.com to be added to the waiting list. 

BIA Website 

Web site will be switched over to the winter brand by early October. 

Action: Send updates (individual store announcements, events, promotions) BY: all 

Contact Chris Bailey at villageoferin@gmail.com DUE: Sept 30 

Central Counties Tourism Funding 

New funding primarily to upgrade branding material: 

• picture and video gallery – rollout early October 

Last year’s funding included a tourism brochure in the Globe & Mail with coupon.  Limited success; suspect not the 

appropriate medium for the target market 

Extended Christmas Hours 

Suggestion put forward to extend Christmas shopping hours to capture the last-minute shoppers market. 

• Success depends on broad retail participation 

• Tie-in with Christmas in the Country promotion 

Action: Draft extended Christmas hours propostion BY: C. Bailey

  DUE: Oct 1 

Action: Notify willingness to participation in extended hours the 2 weeks before Christmas BY: all

 Contact Chris Bailey at villageoferin@gmail.com DUE: Oct 15 

Lamp Banners 

Contract for lamp pole banners coming due. 

Action: For discussion at Board meeting BY: Board

  DUE: Sept 24 

O T H E R  B U S I N E S S  

Economic Development 

At the next East Wellington Economic Development Group there will be a seminar on GPS-based smartphone app with 

potential to notify visitors of points of interest when within the selected geographic range. 

Action: C. Bailey to attend and report back. BY: C. Bailey

  DUE: Sept 25 

Deadline for comments on the draft Economic Development Plan has been extended to October 1st.  BIA asked for 

formal response to the draft plan; BIA Board meeting to dicuss on September 24th.  Other members welcome to attend. 

Action: BIA Board meeting BY: C. Bailey

 9am at Tintagels DUE: Sept 24 

Action: Ratified by members at next Members meeting BY: C. Bailey

 Oct 1, 9 am to 10 am, Tintagels  

  

111



Village of Erin BIA Meeting Minutes  |  03 September 2015 

Pg 4444 | 3 

C. Bailey asked to step down as the BIA representative on the Economic Development Committee.  Need a new 

representative. 

Action: Expressions of interest as BIA representative on the Economic Development Committee BY: all

 Contact Chris Bailey at villageoferin@gmail.com DUE: Sept 23 

Council Update 

The Heritage Committee in partnership with the Town of Erin and with the assistance of the County of Wellington has 

developed a heritage walking tour of the downtown village. 

• An accompanying brochure is currently in production; draft will be sent to the BIA for comment. 

Ongoing 

Appears there is a mini crime spree in the area.  Several local businesses have been hit. 

Action: Ensure doors and windows are secured at the end of the day and security systems are  BY: all 

in good working order 

Increase in counterfiet money 

Action: Be watchful for counterfiet money. BY: all 

Add/update your business on the Town of Erin Business Directory 

Action: Link > Town of Erin Business Directory BY: all 

Add/update job openings and accommodation on Live and Work in Erin website 

Action: Create account to add listings (http://liveandworkerin.com) BY: all 

Happy Moments 

• S. Foord has sold Décor Solutions to a local buyer.  She will continue on in an advisory capacity. 

• Décor Solutions has been selected as the new Benjamin Moore supplier for the area.  This service will operate 

out of the lower level of Décor Solutions. 

• EWCS is hosting a Fashion Show fundraiser on Tuesday, September 22nd.*. The fashion show will highlight New To 

You Fashions. 

*Post-meeting note:  Fashion show has been deferred to October, date still to be determined. 

• The Friendly Chef has initiated a crowdfunding campaign to help them purchase the building which has come up 

for sale.  Target is $100,000 by September 30th 

Action: Support the Friendly Chef with a donation to the crowdfunding campaign BY: all

 See link for more details:  Friendly Chef Crowdfunding Campaign  DUE: Sept 30 

Next Meeting October 1st at Tintagels, 9 00 a.m. 

112



Pg 1 | 4

G E N E R A L M E M B E R S H I P M E E T I N G M I N U T E S

October 01, 2015 – 9:00 a.m. to 10:15 a.m.
Tintagels, 50 Main Street, Erin

ATTENDEES: Chris Bailey, Chair
Brighten Up

Stephanie Bailey
Brighten Up

Ellen Belfgen-McKay
Weathervane

Stephanie Conway
EWCS

Audrey Devonshire
Tintagels / Minerva’s

Shelley Foord
Décor Solutions

Judy Gibson
Edward Jones

Dawn Kivell
TD Bank

Thortin Macdonald
Bistro Riviere

Rob Smith
Council Rep, Town of Erin

Mary Venneman
BIA Administrative Assistant

Approval of Minutes

Motion to approve minutes by E. Belfen-McKay, seconded by D. Kivell. Motion passed.

M A R K E T I N G

Events

Feast of Hops Debrief:

 The event was considered a success, attracting about 150 attendees to the first-time event

 “Best of Food” vote is a good way to motivate food providers to bring their best samples.

Recommendation: Add or include “Best of Beer” vote next year

Erin Studio TourDebrief:

 Much better for downtown merchants than previous years, especially with artists resident in the old Steen’s
building

 Window art displays also effective

 Ran out of brochures; larger quantity needed next year

Sidewalk Sale Debrief:

 Rain was a considerable drawback

 Artists didn’t like it as it made their artist signs hard to see [sidewalk sale was in conjunction with the first
Saturday of the Studio Tour]

 For next year, think of something else to leverage but complement the Studio Tour

Erin Fall Fair Saturday-Monday, Oct. 10-12 – Erin Fair Grounds

BIA partnering with Erin Agricultural Society, Town of Erin and Headwaters Tourism to host the Welcome Booth at the

entrance gate.

113



Village of Erin BIA Meeting Minutes | 01 October 2015

Pg 2 | 3

 Welcome Booth gift bags; 1000 gift bags to be handed out. Opportunity for exposure; should be more than
just advertising

Action: Swag for gift bags BY: all
Deliver to Chris Bailey at Brighten Up DUE: Oct 05

 As pilot project, the BIA with Town of Erin has commissioned Windy Acres to provide free horse-drawn carriage
rides between the Fall Fair entrance and downtown. Carriage rides will be available on Saturday and Sunday
between noon and 4:30 pm.

 Carnival Eats, a new TV reality show, is coming to the Fall Fair. Bistro Riviere and The Friendly Chef will have
booths at the Fair and be included in the eposide lineup.

Window Wonderland Friday, Nov. 13 – downtown Erin Village

 Event will again include horse carriage rides and the Grinch, Santa and his elves. Mrs. Clause is new addition
this year, to coordinate and manage the elves.

Action: Volunteer recruitment BY: all
Send names to Stephanie Bailey at stephanie.giugovaz@gmail.com DUE: Oct 31

 Empty windows in vacant stores will undermine the impact of the event.

Action: Community Groups and/or BIA business volunteers to decorate a vacant window BY: all
Contact Chris Bailey at villageoferin@gmail.com DUE: Oct 31

 Christmas wreaths will hung on the lamp posts before the event.

Christmas Parade Saturday, Nov. 28 – Main Street

 Still in discussion with Lion’s Club about shifting parade to later in the afternoon to reduce the impact on prime
shopping hours.

 BIA will enter a float this year to promote downtown merchants.

Action: Volunteer recruitment to build BIA float BY: all
Send names to Shelley Foord at info@decorsolutions.ca DUE: Oct 31

Promotion

In the Hills Advertising

 Fall issue has been published and distributed. Deadline for additions, changes to next issue is October 20
th

.

Action: New ads or changes to existing ads (ads are $95/mth, min. 3 months) BY: all
Contact Shelley Foord at info@decorsolutions.ca DUE: Oct 20

 In discussion with publisher for 2016 collaborative advertising rates.

Action: Interest in participating in 2016 In The Hills collaborative advertising campaign BY: all
Contact Shelley Foord at info@decorsolutions.ca DUE: Nov 30

BIA Website

Web site will be switched over to the winter brand by end of October.

Action: Send updates (individual store announcements, events, promotions) BY: all
Send to Chris Bailey at villageoferin@gmail.com DUE: Oct 16

Central Counties Tourism Funding

 Funding to update picture and video gallery – rollout in October

114



Village of Erin BIA Meeting Minutes | 01 October 2015

Pg 3 | 3

 Funding for horse & carriage rides

Extended Christmas Hours

 Positive support for exending store hours to 8 pm on Thursday and Friday during the Christmas season.
Exended hours will be advertised in the local papers and posted on the Agricultural Society sign board.

Action: Extend store hours to 8 pm onThursday and Friday in December BY: all
December 3 &4 | December 10 & 11 | December 17 & 18

O T H E R B U S I N E S S

Economic Development

Recommendation: Town lease/buy old Steen’s building and use as multi-use purpose building for tourist
information/heritage/teaching workspace/community OPP office and public washrooms
(biodegradable in interim).

BIA comments on the draft Economic Development Plan have been submitted to the Town.

BIA still requires a new representative to replace Chris Bailey on the Economic Development Committee. Committee

generally meets the first Wednesday of every month for 2 hours. The Committee is going on a retreat Saturday, October

17
th

to review the public comments and finalize the Plan. The new BIA rep, if appointed prior to that, would have the

option of participating in that review and discussion.

Action: Expressions of interest in being BIA rep on the Economic Development Committee BY: all
Contact Chris Bailey at villageoferin@gmail.com for more details DUE: asap

Town sponsoring a workshop on How to Start a Bed Breakfast on Wednesday, October 28
th

through Upper Grand

Continuing Education. Cost is $15 + tax, held at the Erin District High School. For more information go to Course Guide.

Council Update

Nothing to report.

Ongoing

Add/update your business on the Town of Erin Business Directory

Action: Link > Town of Erin Business Directory BY: all

Add/update job openings and accommodation on Live and Work in Erin website

Action: Create account to add listings (http://liveandworkerin.com) BY: all

Happy Moments

EWCS Fashion Show Tuesday, October 27

$40 dollars for dinner and fashion show, tax inclusive. Limited seating (80). Contact Stephanie at Brighten Up or Shelley

at Décor Solutions for tickets.

BIA Christmas Potluck Dinner Date TBD

Dinner will be a weekday evening in early December. Audrey Devonshire has again generously agreed to provide

Tintagels as the venue

Other

Brighten Up is expanding to include the next unit.

115



Village of Erin BIA Meeting Minutes | 01 October 2015

Pg 4 | 3

Next Meeting November 5th at Tintagels, 9 00 a.m.

116



117



118



 

 

 
 
VIA EMAIL 
 

Legislative & Planning Services 
Department 
Office of the Regional Clerk 
1151 Bronte Road 
Oakville ON  L6M 3L1 

 
November 16, 2015 
 
 
Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change, Sue Lo 
Halton-Hamilton Source Protection Committee, Robert Edmondson 
Credit Valley, Toronto Region & Central Lake Ontario (CTC) Source Protection 
Committee, Susan Self 
Lake Erie Source Protection Committee, Wendy Wright Cascaden 
County of Wellington, Donna Bryce 
Town of Erin, Dina Lundy 
City of Burlington, Angela Morgan 
Town of Halton Hills, Suzanne Jones 
Town of Milton, Troy McHarg 
Town of Oakville, Vicki Tytaneck  
 
Please be advised that at its meeting held Thursday, November 12, 2015, the Council of 
the Regional Municipality of Halton adopted the following resolution: 
 
 
RESOLUTION:  PW-34-15/LPS113-15 - Source Protection Plan Implementation 

Requirements Under the Clean Water Act, 2006 
 

1. THAT effective December 31, 2015, being the commencement date of the 
approved Source Protection Plan(s), the Supervisor, Municipal Water Resources 
of the Public Works Department be appointed as Risk Management Official for 
Halton Region under Part IV of the Clean Water Act, 2006 and Council delegate 
the authority to the Commissioner of Public Works, or his or her designate, to 
appoint additional Risk Management Officials for Halton Region from existing 
staff compliments if the need arises, as outlined in Report No. PW-34-15/ 
LPS113-15, re: “Source Protection Plan Implementation Requirements Under the 
Clean Water Act, 2006.” 

 
2. THAT effective December 31, 2015, being the commencement date of the 

approved Source Protection Plan(s), the Source Water Protection Coordinator of 
the Public Works Department be appointed as Risk Management Inspector for 
Halton Region under Part IV of the Clean Water Act, 2006 and Council delegate 
the authority to the Commissioner of Public Works, or his or her designate, to 
appoint additional Risk Management Inspectors for Halton Region from existing 
staff compliments if need arises, as set out in Report No. PW-34-15/LPS113-15. 

 

119



 

 

3. THAT the Director of Legal Services be authorized to prepare the necessary By-
laws and ancillary documents to facilitate the appointment of the Supervisor, 
Municipal Water Resources as the Risk Management Official and Source Water 
Protection Coordinator as the Risk Management Inspector as well as the 
delegated appointment authority to the Commissioner of Public Works, as set out 
in Report No. PW-34-15/LPS113-15. 

 
4. THAT on December 31, 2015, the Regional Clerk issue a certificate of 

appointment bearing the Regional Clerk's signature to the Risk Management 
Official and the Risk Management Inspector, confirming the appointments by 
Regional Council, as set out in Report No. PW-34-15/LPS113-15.  

 
5. THAT Council endorse nominations of the Supervisor, Municipal Water 

Resources (Risk Management Official) of the Public Works Department and the 
Manager of Policy Planning of the Legislative and Planning Services Department 
to represent the collective interest of Halton Region, the City of Burlington, Town 
of Halton Hills, the Town of Milton, and the Town of Oakville on the Source 
Protection Committee for the Halton-Hamilton Source Protection Region as set 
out in Report No. PW-34-15/LPS113-15. 

 
6. THAT Council request the Province to enact amendments to the Planning Act, as 

proposed in Bill 73, to restrict the right of appeal for any amendment to an Official 
Plan that is required to bring it into conformity with a Source Protection Plan as 
set out in Report No. PW-34-15/LPS113-15. 

 
7. THAT the Regional Clerk forwards a copy of Report No. PW-34-15/LPS113-15 to 

the City of Burlington, the Town of Erin, the Town of Halton Hills, the Town of 
Milton, the Town of Oakville, Wellington County, the Chair of the Halton-Hamilton 
Source Protection Committee, the Chair of the Credit Valley, Toronto Region and 
Central Lake Ontario (CTC) Source Protection Committee, the Chair of the Lake 
Erie Source Protection Committee and the Ministry of the Environment and 
Climate Change for their information. 

 
Included please find a copy of Report No. PW-34-15/LPS113-15 for your information. 
 
If you have any questions please contact me at extension 7110 or the e-mail address 
below. 

 
Graham Milne 
Deputy Clerk and Supervisor of 
Council & Committee Services 
graham.milne@halton.ca 

120



 
  

The Regional Municipality of Halton 
 
 

1 

  
Report To: Chair and Members of the Planning and Public Works Committee 

 
From: Jim Harnum, Commissioner, Public Works 

Mark G. Meneray, Commissioner, Legislative & Planning Services 
and Corporate Counsel 
 

Date: November 4, 2015 

Report No. - Re: PW-34-15/LPS113-15 - Source Protection Plan Implementation 
Requirements Under the Clean Water Act, 2006 

  
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

1. THAT effective December 31, 2015, being the commencement date of the 
approved Source Protection Plan(s), the Supervisor, Municipal Water Resources 
of the Public Works Department be appointed as Risk Management Official for 
Halton Region under Part IV of the Clean Water Act, 2006 and Council delegate 
the authority to the Commissioner of Public Works, or his or her designate, to 
appoint additional Risk Management Officials for Halton Region from existing staff 
compliments if the need arises, as outlined in Report No. PW-34-15/LPS113-15, 
re: “Source Protection Plan Implementation Requirements Under the Clean Water 
Act, 2006.” 
 

2. THAT effective December 31, 2015, being the commencement date of the 
approved Source Protection Plan(s), the Source Water Protection Coordinator of 
the Public Works Department be appointed as Risk Management Inspector for 
Halton Region under Part IV of the Clean Water Act, 2006 and Council delegate 
the authority to the Commissioner of Public Works, or his or her designate, to 
appoint additional Risk Management Inspectors for Halton Region from existing 
staff compliments if need arises, as set out in Report No. PW-34-15/LPS113-15.  
 

3. THAT the Director of Legal Services be authorized to prepare the necessary By-
laws and ancillary documents to facilitate the appointment of the Supervisor, 
Municipal Water Resources as the Risk Management Official and Source Water 
Protection Coordinator as the Risk Management Inspector as well as the 
delegated appointment authority to the Commissioner of Public Works, as set out 
in Report No. PW-34-15/LPS113-15. 
 

4. THAT on December 31, 2015, the Regional Clerk issue a certificate of 
appointment bearing the Regional Clerk's signature to the Risk Management 
Official and the Risk Management Inspector, confirming the appointments by 
Regional Council, as set out in Report No. PW-34-15/LPS113-15. 
 

Approved - Planning and Public Works - Nov 04, 2015 
Adopted - Regional Council - Nov 12, 2015 

121

http://sirepub.halton.ca/view.aspx?cabinet=Published_Meetings&fileid=191029


 

2 

5. THAT Council endorse nominations of the Supervisor, Municipal Water Resources 
(Risk Management Official) of the Public Works Department and the Manager of 
Policy Planning of the Legislative and Planning Services Department to represent 
the collective interest of Halton Region, the City of Burlington, Town of Halton 
Hills, the Town of Milton, and the Town of Oakville on the Source Protection 
Committee for the Halton-Hamilton Source Protection Region as set out in Report 
No. PW-34-15/LPS113-15. 
 

6. THAT Council request the Province to enact amendments to the Planning Act, as 
proposed in Bill 73, to restrict the right of appeal for any amendment to an Official 
Plan that is required to bring it into conformity with a Source Protection Plan as set 
out in Report No. PW-34-15/LPS113-15. 
 

7. THAT the Regional Clerk forwards a copy of Report No. PW-34-15/LPS113-15 to 
the City of Burlington, the Town of Erin, the Town of Halton Hills, the Town of 
Milton, the Town of Oakville, Wellington County, the Chair of the Halton-Hamilton 
Source Protection Committee, the Chair of the Credit Valley, Toronto Region and 
Central Lake Ontario (CTC) Source Protection Committee, the Chair of the Lake 
Erie Source Protection Committee and the Ministry of the Environment and 
Climate Change for their information. 

 
REPORT 
 
Executive Summary 
 

• Staff took a coordinated approach with the Local Municipalities to comprehensively 
review and comment on three proposed Source Protections Plans that will impact 
Halton Region, namely: Halton-Hamilton; Lake Erie and CTC (Credit Valley, 
Toronto and Region, Central Lake Ontario).  
 

• Review of the proposed Source Protection Plans was conducted to consider the 
collective interests of Halton Region, the Local Municipalities, and 
residents/businesses and to ensure that policies contained within these proposed 
Plans represented an appropriate and reasonable response to the actual risk to 
Halton Region’s municipal water supplies. 
 

• This Report provides an update to Regional Council on the development phase of 
the Source Protection Plans and implementation phase requirements following 
recent Ministry of Environment and Climate Change approvals of the proposed 
Halton-Hamilton and CTC Source Protection Plans in 2015. 
 

• With the transition into Plan implementation, this Report recommends Council 
appoint a Risk Management Official and Risk Management Inspector for Halton 
Region and nominate new Halton municipal representatives for membership on 
the Halton-Hamilton Source Protection Committee. 

 

122



 

3 

Background 
 
As reported to Council in several reports over the last decade, the Province has 
implemented a regulatory framework which provides a proactive multi-barrier approach to 
safeguard municipal drinking water.  Under the Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002, Halton 
Region continues to fully meet and exceed municipal water treatment, distribution and 
testing regulatory requirements to ensure the consistent delivery of safe and high quality 
drinking water to our customers.  The Clean Water Act, 2006 is an additional piece to this 
protective framework which focuses on protecting municipal drinking water at its source 
through the mandatory implementation of Source Protection Plans. 
 
Over the last several years, Source Protection Plans have been under development by 
watershed-based Source Protection Authorities and legislatively prescribed Source 
Protection Committees as previously detailed in Reports PW-49-13/LPS78-13 and PW-
58-11.  Through this process, municipalities have been identified as one of the major 
implementing bodies of the proposed Plans and will be responsible for undertaking 
specific actions to further protect municipal drinking water sources. 
 
In order to assess the impact and implementation feasibility of these proposed Plans, 
staff undertook a coordinated approach with the Local Municipalities to extensively review 
and technically assess the three proposed Source Protection Plans (Halton-Hamilton, 
Lake Erie and CTC) within Halton Region using Council endorsed evaluation criteria as 
per Report PW-58-11.  During development of these Plans, staff carried out on-going 
municipal consultation with the Source Protection Committees, the Ministry of the 
Environment and Climate Change, and the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing 
regarding the proposed Plans.  Detailed comments were submitted for consideration in 
an effort to ensure the proposed Plans were an appropriate and reasonable response to 
any actual identified risk to Halton’s municipal source water supplies.   
 
Based on this substantial input from Halton Region and other stakeholders, the proposed 
Source Protection Plans were updated by the Source Protection Committees to include 
several policy improvements and a considerable reduction to the number of affected 
properties within Halton which will be subject to regulation under the Plans.  The updated 
Source Protection Plans were then released to the Province for final review and approval 
in 2014 and 2015.  To date, the Minister of the Environment and Climate Change has 
approved the Halton-Hamilton and CTC Source Protection Plans, with approval of the 
Lake Erie Source Protection Plan anticipated in December, 2015.   
 
With the Ministry’s approval of these Plans and their established “effective dates” 
(December 31, 2015; July 1, 2016), Halton Region is responsible for the mandatory 
implementation of the Plans in 2016 under the Clean Water Act, 2006 as further detailed 
in this Report.    
 
 
 
 

123



 

4 

Discussion 
 
Approved Source Protection Plans 
 
Source Protection Plans have been developed across three different Source Protection 
Regions within Halton that correspond to local Conservation Authority watershed 
boundaries as shown in Attachment 1.  The approved Source Protection Plans regulate 
certain land-based threat activities within close proximity to municipal drinking water 
sources.  If not properly managed, these threat activities potentially present a risk to the 
quality or quantity of drinking water taken from these supplies either presently or in the 
future.   
 
As defined in the Clean Water Act, 2006 and previously detailed in Reports PW-58-11 
and PW-49-13/LPS78-13, the Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change 
prescribed activities include the use of septic systems, waste disposal sites, agricultural 
materials, chemicals, fuels, road salt, large water quantity takings, etc., as potential 
threats.   Based on a desktop assessment of existing land use information and limited 
field verification carried out by local Source Protection Authorities, an estimation of 
potential existing landowner threat activities across Halton Region is shown in Table 1.    
 
Table 1: Potential Land-based Threat Activities to Halton Water Supplies 
Ministry Prescribed 
Groundwater Treats  

Source Protection Region 

 CTC Halton- Hamilton *  
Lake Erie 

Agricultural Activities 215 3 13 
Septic and Sewage Systems  1421 40 9 
Road Salt Application and Storage 2687 4 0 
Fuel / Chemical Use and Storage 289 4 2 
TOTAL 4612 51 24 
* Note: Five source water threats (petrochemical, sewage systems) to Halton Region’s lake-
based water purification plants were also identified in the Halton-Hamilton Source Protection 
Region. 
 
In order to improve the accuracy of the threat information and better understand the 
magnitude of potential impacts, staff has initiated field verification of specific threat 
activities which may involve the use of chemicals, fuels, road salt and agricultural 
materials as outlined in Report PW-29-15.  If certain threat activities are confirmed to be 
occurring, landowners will be responsible for undertaking Source Protection Plan actions 
to manage or eliminate the existing or potential future threat to our municipal drinking 
water supplies.   
 
As noted in Report PW-29-15, all landowner information collected will be kept confidential 
under the Municipal Freedom of Information and Privacy Act and used solely for the 
purpose of municipal implementation of the mandated Source Protection Plans.   
 
 

124



 

5 

Source Protection Plan Implementation 
 
Implementation of the Source Protection Plans will build upon Halton Region’s ongoing 
management and protection of its municipal drinking water supplies already in place 
through the Region’s Aquifer Management Plan, regular groundwater quality 
sampling/testing, emergency spill response program, Salt Management Plan and 
Regional Official Plan policies which identify development restrictions within Wellhead 
Protection Areas and sensitive natural areas.  
 
As part of the approved Source Protection Plans, Halton Region and other municipalities 
have a mandatory duty to implement several Plan policies, especially with regard to risk 
management, land use planning and education.  Along with prescribed instrument 
policies currently implemented by Provincial Ministries, municipalities are intended to 
manage or prevent threats to municipal drinking water sources by implementing several 
additional policies which are based on the following tools: 
 

• Risk Management Plans implemented by Halton Region (under Part IV of the 
Clean Water Act, 2006) to manage landowner threat activities identified within our 
municipal Wellhead Protection Areas;  
 

• Prohibition by Halton Region (under Part IV of the Clean Water Act, 2006) to 
eliminate certain landowner activities within close proximity to our municipal water 
supplies;  
 

• Land use planning policies implemented by Local Municipalities in partnership with 
Halton Region to prohibit specific land uses within and in close proximity to 
Regional municipal water supplies to prevent future threats; 
 

• Prioritized maintenance inspection of private septic systems (“applicable law” in 
the Building Code Act) by Local Municipalities in areas which may pose risk to 
municipal drinking water supplies; 
 

• Education and outreach to promote landowner activity best management practices 
and environmental stewardship. 

 
Based on the current understanding of threat activity information, it is anticipated that the 
majority of the identified threats (septic and sewage systems, agricultural materials, 
livestock management, municipal biosolids, residential road salt application, etc.) 
identified within Halton Region will continue to be fully addressed by existing Provincial 
prescribed instruments and/or can be adequately managed through education and 
outreach.   
 
Risk management, as prescribed in Part IV of the Clean Water Act, 2006, provides 
municipalities with the authority to manage or prohibit other threat activities (underground 
fuel storage, chemical/salt use, smaller farming operations using agricultural materials, 
etc.) not addressed through existing Provincial instruments.  Staff anticipate that several 

125



 

6 

hundred Risk Management Plans will need to be developed in collaboration with 
landowners engaged in these threat activities undertaken within close proximity to our 
municipal water sources.  Staff is also working with four property owners to prohibit 
certain existing activities within 100 metres of our municipal wells due to actual risk posed 
to these water supplies.   
 
In order to administer these legislated Part IV risk management and prohibition 
responsibilities, Regional Council must appoint a Risk Management Official(s) and Risk 
Management Inspector(s) (Recommendations #1 and #2).  Accordingly, staff is 
recommending the Supervisor, Municipal Water Resources be appointed as Risk 
Management Official and the Source Water Protection Coordinator be appointed as Risk 
Management Inspector.  Following the appointments, the Regional Clerk will be required 
to issue a certificate of appointment to each appointee (Recommendation #4).   
 
Conformity to Source Protection Plans 
 
The Clean Water Act, 2006 requires that Planning Act and Condominium Act decisions 
conform to the policy direction in the Source Protection Plans, upon the effective date of 
the Plans.  Guidance is provided in the Source Protection Plans with respect to how the 
new policies will apply to development applications currently in process and often existing 
uses are to be distinguished from future uses.  The effect of the new policies may mean 
additional requirements for applicants in order to ensure any potential risks to municipal 
supply wells are addressed appropriately.  Collaboration between Regional and Local 
Municipal staff is underway to ensure that there is smooth integration of the Source 
Protection Plan requirements with the existing development review and Building Permit 
processes, including coordination with the Region’s Risk Management Official once 
appointed. 
 
Regional and Local Municipal Official Plans will also need to be amended to conform to 
the applicable Source Protection Plans.  Through Report LPS28-14, Regional Council 
authorized the commencement of the five-year review of Halton Region’s Official Plan.  
This Report recognized that Source Water Protection Plans for the three Source 
Protection Regions within Halton would form part of the provincial policy conformity 
exercise.  As part of the Official Plan review process, Regional staff will continue to work 
with Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing staff to ensure this review institutes 
amendments that follow provincial direction while simplifying the implementation as much 
as possible. 
 
The Clean Water Act, 2006 and Planning Act do not contain provisions that restrict 
appeals to municipal official plans amendments which are made to conform to Source 
Water Protection Plan policies.  However, Bill 73, the ‘Smart Growth for Our Communities 
Act’, which received first reading before the Ontario legislature on March 24, 2015, 
introduced proposed changes to the Planning Act to restrict appeals to official plan 
amendments that implement provincial plan conformity exercises, including Source Water 
Protection plans under the Clean Water Act, 2006.  Council was informed about these, 
and other proposed Bill 73 Planning Act changes, through Report LPS39-15. 

126



 

7 

 
Implementing restrictions on appeals for source water conformity amendments is a 
critical issue as the Region may have to spend considerable time and resources 
defending appeals to its required official plan conformity amendment at the Ontario 
Municipal Board.  To streamline this policy conformity exercise, staff recommends that 
the Province enact legislative changes to the Planning Act, as proposed through Bill 73, 
to restrict appeal rights for any amendments to bring an Official Plan into conformity with 
a Source Protection Plan (Recommendation #6).   

 
Source Protection Committee Representation 
 
The Clean Water Act, 2006 prescribes the process under which Source Protection 
Authorities establish Source Protection Committees and Halton’s Municipal Committee 
member representation.  This process has been detailed in previous Reports PPW111-
07, PPW138-07, PWE10-09 and PW-05-11.   
 
Through this process, Halton Region was assigned two municipal member 
representatives on the Halton-Hamilton Source Protection Committee (Manager of Water 
Planning-Public Works, Barry Lee-Former Regional Councillor) and one shared municipal 
member representative with the County of Wellington (David Kentner, Local Councillor, 
Town of Halton Hills) on the CTC Source Protection Committee.  Halton Region did not 
apply for membership on the Lake Erie Source Protection Committee since it has no 
municipal wells in the Lake Erie Source Protection Region that would be potentially 
impacted.  
 
With the recent approval of the Source Protection Plans, the appointment term of some 
current Source Protection Committee members will formally end and new Committee 
members will be appointed over time in accordance with O. Reg. 288/07 under the Clean 
Water Act, 2006.  Accordingly, staff recommend that new Halton municipal 
representatives be nominated for membership on the Halton-Hamilton Source Protection 
Committee to replace the previously appointed representation noted above.   
 
Staff reviewed the composition of municipal membership in Source Protection 
Committees across the province.  The review findings indicated that the majority of 
comparable municipalities recommended Public Works Department staff, such as 
designated Risk Management Officials (i.e. Peel Region, York Region, City of Guelph), 
for appointment to the Committees.  Risk Management Officials will play a significant role 
in the implementation and monitoring of the Source Protection Plans now that the policy 
development phase of the Plans has been completed. 
 
As such, it is recommended that the positions of Supervisor, Municipal Water Resources 
(Risk Management Official) in the Public Works Department and Manager of Policy 
Planning in the Legislative and Planning Services Department be nominated to represent 
Halton Region on the Halton-Hamilton Source Protection Committee as outlined in 
Recommendation #5 to provide Regional input to ongoing Committee work.   
 

127



 

8 

Similarly, staff initiated ongoing shared municipal member representation discussions 
with the County of Wellington and will be seeking their concurrence to jointly nominate 
Halton Region’s Risk Management Official in the near future for membership on the CTC 
Source Protection Committee and to represent their source protection interests. 
 
Next Steps 
 
Staff will continue to work with the Local Municipalities and adjacent municipalities to 
develop a comprehensive Source Protection implementation framework to ensure 
Regional, Inter-Regional and Local Municipality business processes are in place.  
 
To further raise awareness of the Source Protection Plans and associated compliance 
requirements, staff has updated the Region’s Source Water Protection website and are 
contacting impacted landowners to help them understand and work towards the 
management of certain threat activities.  Education and Outreach materials are also 
being developed for landowners in this regard. 
 
As part of the ongoing field verification of landowner threat activities, Halton Region is 
developing a new data management system to inventory property specific threat activity 
information and Risk Management Official correspondence.  This information will support 
ongoing monitoring of the Source Protection Plans and future mandatory annual reporting 
updates to the Source Protection Authorities and the Ministry of the Environment and 
Climate Change who will be evaluating municipal actions undertaken to implement the 
Source Protection Plans.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

128



 

9 

FINANCIAL/PROGRAM IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no immediate financial impacts arising from Report PW-34-15/LPS113-15.  To 
meet Source Water Protection compliance requirements, budgetary impacts associated 
with the implementation of the Source Protection Plans will be developed through a future 
budget process. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Lisa De Angelis P. Eng. 
Director, Infrastructure Planning and Policy 

 
Jim Harnum 
Commissioner, Public Works 

 

 
Ron Glenn 
Director, Planning Services and Chief 
Planning Official 

 
Mark G. Meneray 
Commissioner, Legislative & Planning 
Services and Corporate Counsel 

 
Approved by 

 
Jane MacCaskill 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
If you have any questions on the content of this report,  
please contact: 

Lisa De Angelis  Tel. #  7547 
Ron Glenn Tel. #  7966 
David Simpson Tel. #  7601 

 
Attachments: Attachment #1 – Source Protection Regions in Halton  

 
 

 

129



HI
GH

WA
Y 4

07

HIGHWAY 401

TR
AF

AL
GA

R 
RO

AD

AP
PL

EB
Y 

LIN
E

DERRY ROAD
SIX

TH
 LI

NE

FO
UR

TH
 LI

NE

GU
EL

PH
 LI

NE

NO 15 SIDE ROAD
WA

LK
ER

'S 
LIN

E

QUEEN ELIZABETH WAY

NO 32 SIDE ROAD

NO 5 SIDE ROAD

TR
EM

AI
NE

 R
OA

D

FIF
TH

 LI
NE

DU
BL

IN
 LI

NE

RE
GI

ON
AL

 R
OA

D 
25

NO 25 SIDE ROAD
FIR

ST
 LI

NE
 N

AS
SA

GA
WE

YA

HIGHWAY 7

MAINWAY

TW
ISS

 R
OA

D

SIX
TH

 LI
NE

 N
AS

SA
GA

W
EY

A

TE
NT

H 
LIN

E

DUNDAS STREET

NEW STREET

NO 20 SIDE ROAD

NI
NT

H 
LIN

E

MI
LB

UR
OU

GH
 LI

NE

HIGHWAY 403

LAKESHORE ROAD

STEELES AVENUE

REBECCA STREET

BRONTE ROAD

FAIRVIEW STREET

FO
UR

TH
 LI

NE
 N

AS
SA

GA
W

EY
A

SPEERS ROAD

SE
CO

ND
 LI

NE
 N

AS
SA

GA
W

EY
A

BR
AN

T S
TR

EE
T

KIN
G 

RO
AD

CEDAR SPRINGS ROAD

UPPER MIDDLE ROAD

FIF
TH

 LI
NE

 N
AS

SA
GA

WE
YA

GUELPH STREET

DUNDAS STREET WEST

FO
RD

 D
RI

VE

HARVESTER ROAD

NO 10 SIDE ROAD

CORNWALL ROAD

DORVAL DRIVE

MAIN STREET EAST

THIRD LINE

FIR
ST

 LI
NE

CAMPBELLVILLE ROAD

DUNDAS STREET EAST

EIG
HT

H 
LIN

E

BRITANNIA ROAD

MC
NI

VE
N 

RO
AD

UPPER MIDDLE ROAD WEST

NO 30 SIDE ROAD

NO 17 SIDE ROAD

UPPER MIDDLE ROAD EAST

LOUIS ST LAURENT AVENUE

BELL SCHOOL LINE

PLAINS ROAD WEST

NE
YA

GA
WA

 B
OU

LE
VA

RD

LOWER BASE LINE

MAPLE AVENUE

STEELES AVENUE WEST

HI
GH

WA
Y 6

ES
QU

ES
IN

G 
LIN

E

BLIND LINE

LIMESTONE ROAD

NA
SS

AG
AW

EY
A-

PU
SL

IN
CH

 TO
WN

LIN
E

BURNHAMTHORPE ROAD EAST

BO
ST

ON
 C

HU
RC

H 
RO

ADDA
RK

W
OO

D 
RO

AD

MAIN STR
EET

RIVER DRIVE

WI
NS

TO
N 

CH
UR

CH
ILL

 B
OU

LE
VA

RD
LOWER BASE LINE EAST

MA
IN

 S
TR

EE
T S

OU
TH

NO 8 SIDE ROAD

REID SIDE ROAD

NO 22 SIDE ROAD

CR
EW

SO
NS

 LI
NE

NO 28 SIDE ROAD

NO 27 SIDE ROAD

EIG
HT

H 
LIN

E
EIG

HT
H 

LIN
E

BRITANNIA ROAD

HIGHWAY 401

FIF
TH

 LI
NE

BE
LL

 SC
HO

OL
 LI

NE

SIX
TH

 LI
NE

FIF
TH

 LI
NE

TH
IR

D 
LIN

E

HIGHWAY 40
7

MILBUROUGH LINE

FO
UR

TH
 LI

NE

NI
NT

H 
LIN

E
NI

NT
H 

LIN
E

NO 10 SIDE ROAD

HIGHWAY 403

SIX
TH

 LI
NE

HIGHWAY 7

TE
NT

H 
LIN

E

GU
EL

PH
 LI

NE

LAKE ERIE 
SOURCE PROTECTION 

REGION

CTC 
SOURCE PROTECTION

REGION

HALTON-HAMILTON
SOURCE PROTECTION

REGION

Source Protection Regions in Halton
Infrastructure Planning

& Policy
November 2015

0 4 82
Kilometres

Burlington Water 
Plant Intakes (2)

Burloak Water 
Plant Intake

Oakville Water
Plant Intake

Attachment #1
to PW-34-15 / 
LPS113-15

¯ Region 
of 

Peel

Wellington 
County

Legend

Water Plant Intakes

Municipal Wells

Municipal Boundary
Roads
Source Protection 
Region Boundary

Wellhead Protection Areas
Issues Contributing Areas

Intake Protection Zones

City 
of 

Hamilton

City of Guelph

130



131



132



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF ERIN 

 

 

BY-LAW # 15 - ___ 

 

 

Being a By-law to authorize borrowing 

 from time to time to meet current  

expenditures during the fiscal  

year ending December 31, 2015. 
 

WHEREAS the Municipal Act 2001, S. O. 2001, Section 407 allows a municipality at 
any time during a fiscal year to temporarily borrow, until the taxes are collected and 
other revenues received, an amount Council considers necessary to meet the current 
expenditures of the municipality for the year; and 
 

WHEREAS the total amount which may be borrowed from all sources at any one time 
to meet the current expenditures of the Corporation, except with the approval of the 
Municipal Board, is limited by section 407 of the Municipal Act; 
 

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF 

ERIN ENACTS AS FOLLOWS; 

 
1. The Treasurer is hereby authorized to borrow from time to time during the year 

2015 (hereinafter referred to as the current year) such sums as may be 
necessary to meet, until the taxes are collected and other revenues received, the 
current expenditures of the Corporation and the other amounts that are set out in 
subsection 407.(1) of the Municipal Act. 

 
2. The lender(s) from whom amounts may be borrowed under authority of this by-

law shall be the Royal Bank of Canada and such other lender(s) as may be 
determined from time to time by resolution of Council. 

 
3. The total amount which may be borrowed at any one time under this by-law, 

together with the total of any similar borrowing that have not been repaid, shall 
not exceed from January 1

st
 to September 30

th
 of the current year, 50 percent of 

the total, and from October 1
st
 to December 31

st
 of the current year, 25 percent 

of the total of the estimated revenues of the Corporation as set forth in the 

estimates adopted for the current year or $1,500,000.00, whichever is less, 
 
4. The Treasurer shall, at the time when any amount is borrowed under this by-law, 

ensure that the lender is or has been furnished with a certified copy of this by-
law, (a certified copy of the resolution mentioned in section 2 determining the 
lender,) if applicable, and a statement showing the nature and amount of the 
estimated revenues for the current year and also showing the total of any other 
amounts borrowed from any and all sources under authority of section 407 of the 
Municipal Act that have not been repaid. 

 
 
5. All of the sums borrowed under this by-law shall, with interest thereon, be a 

charge upon the whole of the revenues of the Corporation for the current year 
and for any preceding years as and when such revenues are received; provided 
that such charge does not defeat or affect and is subject to any prior charge then 
subsisting in favor of any other lender. 

 
6. The Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to apply in payment of all or any 

sums borrowed under this by-law, together with interest thereon, all or any of the 
moneys hereafter collected or received, either on account of or realized in 
respect of the taxes levied for the current year and preceding years or from any 
other sources, which may lawfully be applied for such purpose. 

 
7. Promissory Notes or Banker’s Acceptances made under section 1 shall be 

133



signed by the Treasurer and the Head of Council or by such other person as is 
authorized by by-law to sign it. 

 
8. That By-Law # 14-26 is hereby repealed and replaced with this By-law. 

 
9. This by-law shall take effect upon third reading thereof. 
 
 
 

Passed in Open Council on December 1
st

, 2015. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

     __________________________________ 

     Mayor 

 

 

 

 

     __________________________________ 

     Clerk 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

134



CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF ERIN 
 

BY-LAW # 15- 
 

Being a By-Law to enter into a Development Agreement 
relating to all of the lands in PIN 71161-0493 (LT), 
Silvercreek Meadows; (1333901 Ontario Limited) 

 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Subsection 51 (26) of the Planning Act, R. S. O. 1990, as 
amended, a Council may enter into an agreement imposed as a condition of approval of 
a plan of subdivision and the agreement may be registered against the land to which it 
applies, and the municipality is entitled to enforce the provisions of it against the owner, 
and subject to the Registry Act and the Land Titles Act, any and all subsequent owners 
of the land; 
 
AND WHEREAS, the legal descriptions of the lands are Lot 7, Plan 129, Part 7 ON 
61R10516 AND BLK 10 AND PART BLOCK 9 PLAN 790, PARTS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 & 6 ON 
61R10516; S/T EASEMENT OVER PART ON 61R10516; S/T EASEMENT OVER PART ON 
61R10516 AS IN RO613593, TOWN OF ERIN, BEING ALL OF THE LANDS IN PIN 71161-
0493 (LT); 
 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Town of Erin hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

 
1. That the Mayor and CAO/Town Manager are hereby directed to execute the 

Development Agreement attached to, and forming part of this By-law. 
 
2. That this By-law comes into force and takes effect upon the final passage 

thereof. 
 

  
Passed on December 1, 2015. 
 
     __________________________________ 
     Mayor 
 
 
     __________________________________ 
     Clerk 
 
 

135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF ERIN 
 

BY-LAW # 15- 
 

Being a By-Law to assume Municipal Services in the 
Crewson’s Corner subdivision relating to part lot 1, con 1  

reference plan 61R8324 Parts 1 & 2 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Subdivision Agreement between the Town of Erin and Thomasfield 
Homes Limited provides for the installation of certain public services; 
 
AND WHEREAS, the CAO/Town Manager has received certification that the services in 
Registered Plan 61R8324 Parts 1 & 2, have been constructed and installed in accordance 
with Town specifications; 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Town of Erin hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

 
1. That the services in Registered Plan 61R8324 Parts 1 & 2, more particularly 

described in the Subdivision Agreement between the Corporation of the 
Town of Erin and Thomasfield Homes Limited dated November 9, 2007, be 
and they are hereby assumed as public services. 

 
2. That this By-law comes into force and takes effect upon the final passage 

thereof. 
 

  
Passed on December 1, 2015. 
 
     __________________________________ 
     Mayor 
 
 
     __________________________________ 
     Clerk 
 
 

198



CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF ERIN 
 

BY-LAW # 15- 
 

Being a By-Law to assume Municipal Services in the 
Madison Lakes subdivision relating to a portion of Lot 

14, Concession 3, illustrated as Part 1 on Reference Plan 
61R-7476 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Subdivision Agreement between the Town of Erin and Metro Financial 
Corporation provides for the installation of certain public services; 
 
AND WHEREAS, the CAO/Town Manager has received certification that the services in 
Registered Plan 61R-7476, have been constructed and installed in accordance with 
Town specifications; 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Town of Erin hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

 
1. That the services in Registered Plan 61R-7476, more particularly described in 

the Subdivision Agreement between the Corporation of the Town of Erin and 
Metro Financial dated September 30, 2004, be and they are hereby assumed 
as public services. 

 
2. That this By-law comes into force and takes effect upon the final passage 

thereof. 
 

  
Passed on December 1, 2015. 
 
     __________________________________ 
     Mayor 
 
 
     __________________________________ 
     Clerk 
 
 

199


	Agenda
	5.1 Headwaters Tourism Awards
	Back to Agenda

	6.1 November 17, 2015 Regular Meeting
	Back to Agenda

	9.1 Linda Dickson, Emergency Manager - Emergency Management Program Report for 2015
	Back to Agenda

	9.2 Deborah Martin-Downs - Credit Valley Conservation 2016 Proposed Budget 
	Back to Agenda

	9.3 Kari Simpson and Stephanie Cardway, EWCS - Updating Council on the programs and services offered to residents
	Back to Agenda

	10.1.1 Interim Water Superintendent - Water Department Project Updates
	Back to Agenda

	10.1.2 Interim Water Superintendent - Frozen Water Service Policy
	Back to Agenda

	10.2.1 Clerk - Proposed Corporate Services Fee By-Law
	Back to Agenda

	10.3.1 Director of Finance - Temporary Borrowing By-law 2015
	Back to Agenda

	10.3.2 Financial Analyst - Five Year Capital Plan 2016 – 2020, Draft: Dec 1, 2015
	Back to Agenda

	10.3.3 Director of Finance - Approval of Accounts - Revised Process
	Back to Agenda

	10.4.1 Town of Erin Heritage Committee - September 21 and October 19 meeting minutes, November 16 resolution
	Back to Agenda

	10.4.2 Let's Get Hillsburgh Growing - October 15 Meeting Minutes
	Back to Agenda

	11.1 Activity List
	Back to Agenda

	11.3 Ontario Tire Stewardship - Community Renewal Fund - Project Approval
	Back to Agenda

	11.4 Ministry of Finance and Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing - Ontario Municipal Partnership Fund Program Allocations for 2016
	Back to Agenda

	11.5 Ministry of Citizenship, Immigration and International Trade - The Ontario Medal for Young Volunteers
	Back to Agenda

	11.6 Ted Arnott, MPP Wellington-Halton Hills - Letter of support of Council comments with regards to the Conservation Authorities Act Review
	Back to Agenda

	11.7 Councillor Duncan - Letter regarding a need for signage and speed limit review 
	Back to Agenda

	11.8 County of Wellington - Notice regarding a public meeting to consider an amendment to the County of Wellington Official Plan
	Back to Agenda

	11.9 Erin Village BIA - Meeting minutes from July 23, Sept 3, and Oct 1 2015
	Back to Agenda

	11.10 Municipality of Neebing - Consultation on the Police Services Act
	Back to Agenda

	11.11 Halton Region - Source Protection Plan Implementation Requirements
	Back to Agenda

	11.12 The Corporation of the United Townships of Head, Clara and Maria - Dissolution of Local Emergency Response Board and Request for Services
	Back to Agenda

	15. By-Laws
	Back to Agenda


